
 

 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Date and Time: 
 

Thursday 5 August 2021 7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber 

Enquiries to: 
 

Committee Services 
Committeeservices@hart.gov.uk 
 

Members: 
 

Bailey, Clarke, Cockarill, Kinnell, Neighbour 
(Leader), Oliver, Quarterman and Radley 

 
Joint Chief Executive CIVIC OFFICES, HARLINGTON WAY 

FLEET, HAMPSHIRE GU51 4AE 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

This Agenda and associated appendices are provided in electronic form only and 
are published on the Hart District Council website. 

 
Please download all papers through the Modern.Gov app before the meeting. 

 

 At the start of the meeting, the Lead Officer will confirm the Fire Evacuation 
Procedure. 

 

 The Chairman will announce that this meeting will be recorded and that anyone 
remaining at the meeting had provided their consent to any such recording. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

 
 

1   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of 1 July 2021 are attached to be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

5 - 13 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from Members*. 
 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee services in advance of 
the meeting as soon as they become aware they will be absent. 
 

 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare disposable pecuniary, and any other interests*. 
 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of 
the meeting as soon as they become aware they may have an interest 
to declare. 
 

 

4   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

5   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE AGENDA) 
 

 

6   MINUTES FROM THE CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2021 to be noted. 
 

14 - 16 

7   HART DISTRICT COUNCIL CUSTOMER CARE POLICIES 
 
To refresh and update Hart District Councils Customer Care Standards 
both reflecting and respecting the changing nature of demand from our 
residents. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet approve: 
1. The revised Customer Care Standards as set out in Appendix A. 
2. The revised Policy and Guidance for Dealing with Unreasonable 

Customer Behaviour as set out in Appendix B. 
 

17 - 29 

8   COMMUNITY TRIGGER POLICY 
 
The Community Trigger was introduced in the Antisocial Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014 to provide a mechanism for victims of 
persistent anti-social behaviour to request that relevant bodies 
undertake a case review. 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the policy 
drawn up so it can be adopted and implemented. 

30 - 44 

Page 2



 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the 
Community Trigger Policy. 
 

9   REVISED SAFEGUARDING POLICY & PROCEDURE AND 
MODERN SLAVERY TRANSPARENCY STATEMENT 
 
The Safeguarding Policy & Procedure was last updated in 2018 and is 
due for revision and update this year to include some additional 
information around Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE) and a new 
procedure for submitting referrals directly to Children’s or Adult’s 
Services, as appropriate.  The Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement aims to show the council’s commitment to ensuring there is 
no Modern Slavery in the council’s supply chains. 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the revised 
Safeguarding Policy & Procedure and Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement papers drawn up so they can be adopted and implemented. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the revised 
Safeguarding Policy & Procedure and Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement.  
 

45 - 76 

10   PARKRUN 
 
To gain approval for Parkrun volunteers to establish a new event at 
Edenbrook Country Park. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That Hart enter a 12-month agreement with Parkrun UK to enable 

them to establish a trial Parkrun event at Edenbrook Country Park. 
 
2. That £1,000 funding be drawn down from the Health Eating and 

Lifestyles reserve to contribute towards the set up. 
 

77 - 81 

11   TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/2021 
 
To report the Council’s Treasury Management activities during the 
year ended 31 March 2021 for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
To note the Treasury Management Outturn statement. 
 

82 - 93 

12   CABINET WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider and amend the Cabinet Work Programme. 

94 - 98 

Page 3



 

 

 
 

Date of Publication: Wednesday, 28 July 2021 

Page 4



 

 
 3 

 

CABINET 
 
Date and Time: Thursday 1 July 2021 at 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

Present:  

Bailey, Clarke, Cockarill, Kinnell (from 7.03pm), Neighbour (Leader), Oliver and 
Quarterman 
 
In attendance:  Butcher, Crookes, Farmer, Radley 
 
Officers:  
Daryl Phillips  Joint Chief Executive 
Patricia Hughes Joint Chief Executive 
Emma Foy  Head of Corporate Services and S 151 Officer 
Kirsty Jenkins Head of Community Services 
Louise Lyons  Senior Environmental Health & Housing Officer 
Christine Tetlow New Settlement Manager – Development Control 
Helen Vincent Committee Services  Officer 
 

8 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of 3 June 2021 were confirmed and signed as a 
correct record. 
 

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies received. 
 

10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Oliver declared he is a member of Fleet Town Council in relation to item 16 
on the agenda. 
 

11 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman moved that item 16 be brought forward as members of the public 
were present for that item. 
 

12 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE AGENDA)  
 
Item 16 – Two members of the public were in attendance to support the 
Welcome Back Fund discussion. 
 

13 FROGMORE DAY CARE CENTRE  
 
Members were informed that the closing date for the expression of tender of 
interest to operate the day care centre is 23rd July 2021. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 4 

 

 
14 NEXT STEPS IN COVID-19 RECOVERY  

 
Members were provided with a fourth report providing an update on the work 
undertaken by the Council in response to the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic.  
Previous reports had been considered by Cabinet in July 2020, October 2020 
and January 2021. 
 
Whilst work progressed at pace on vaccinating the population, it is important to 
note that the situation remains live, with restrictions still in place.  The project 
plan is working towards completion and is moving into recovery and business as 
usual.  The report included a new document providing support for Hart’s 
Communities Plan which engaged with key stakeholders across a wider area to 
provide support and recovery from COVID-19. 
 
Members asked about the workshops held with local parishes to promote activity 
and it was confirmed that all town parishes were invited to take part.  A written 
response will be given on parishes who didn’t attend the workshops. 
 
DECISION 
 
That Cabinet: 
1. Noted the updates on the Recovery Plan as outlined in Appendix 1 attached 

to the report. 
2. Noted and endorsed the final decisions taken by the Joint Chief Executive 

under emergency and urgent provisions within the Constitution. 
 

15 POLICY AND FEE POLICY FOR THE “FIT AND PROPER PERSON TEST” 
FOR MANAGERS OF MOBILE HOME SITES  
 
The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper 
Person) (England) Regulations 2020 (‘the Regulations) prohibit the use of land 
as a residential mobile home site unless the local authority is satisfied that the 
owner or manager of the site is a fit and proper person to manage the site.  This 
report required Cabinet approval for the policies drawn up to support this new 
statutory requirement so they can be adopted and implemented. 
 
This report had already been considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
June and agreed amendments and changes had been included in this report.  
Members were advised that an outstanding amendment to the wording of an 
initial application fee to be a ‘one off’ fee would be corrected. 
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet approved the adoption of the following policies:  
1. Appendix 1: The Fit and Proper Person Determination policy.  
2. Appendix 2: The Fit and Proper Person Fees Policy fee. 
 

16 CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT CORPORATE DEBT RECOVERY POLICY  

Page 6



 
 5 

 

 
Members were presented with the revised Corporate Debt Recovery Policy 
which incorporates the Citizens Advice revised collection of Council Tax arrears 
good practice protocol. 
 
DECISION  
 
Cabinet approved the revised Corporate Debt Policy as set out in Appendix 1. 
 

17 WELCOME BACK FUND  
 
This report provided details of four applications for funding, which have been 
submitted to the Council in connection with the Government’s Welcome Back 
Fund.  Members were advised of the four applications received. 

• Application one from Fleet BID – The installation of parklets which are 
small areas converted into seating spaces with softening elements such 
as planting. 

• Application two and three from Odiham Parish - Promotional leaflets and 
a map of the area and creation of a number of picnic areas.  

• Application four – from Officers at Hart Council to create an online 
ecommerce platform to promote local shops and business that would 
cover the whole district. 

Subject to Cabinet’s agreement, the next stage would be to submit a detailed 
Action Plan and Service Level Agreement for consideration by the Ministry of 
Housing, Community and Local Government (MHCLG).  If the applications are 
approved by MHCLG, then the proposed scheme(s) could then commence 
 
Members discussed: 

• The deadline for applications and fund allocation of March 2022. 
• The second phase of funding criteria extension to include promenades 

and public parks. 
• Questioned the confidence in bids with the community and 

communications with the wards and divisional councillors to be taken into 
consideration. 

• Hart branding to be clear to raise popularity and promote Hart. 
• Competitors in the district who already provide an online platform. 
• The prospect of offering long term support.  This fund would be provided 

for one year with further progress monitoring at the end of the year. 
• Store branding within individual projections. 

 
Members agreed to support all four applications but required greater clarification 
about details of application four (online ecommerce platform). It was unclear as 
to what specific platform option was being recommended by Officers (there was 
a wide range between the three options outlined in the report) and as the report 
did not outline the benefits of each option, more information was required. Also, 
there was a concern with regard to the absence of any information that sought to 
clarify the financial implications that may arise from application 4 including any 
future budget pressures and possible on-going commitments placed on the 
Council. Therefore, whilst the principle of an online ecommerce platform could 

Page 7



 
 6 

 

be supported, there was insufficient information available to make a final 
decision. 
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet:  
• Agreed that to support the application from Fleet Bid (application 1) and the 

two applications from Odiham Parish Council (applications two and three)   
• Agreed to support the principle of submitting a bid as outlined in application 

four (online ecommerce platform) but required greater clarification as to the 
details of the option proposed (there was a wide range) and also an 
assessment of the financial implications that may arise and future budget 
[pressures and possible on-going commitments placed on the Council. 
Cabinet agreed to set up a small working group of Cabinet to identify the 
details of the ecommerce platform before making a final decision and report 
back to Cabinet with evidence and a full project plan. The report back to 
Cabinet should set out the full life-time cost of the project. 

 
18 PROVISIONAL 2020/21 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN POSITION  

 
This report presented the provisional revenue outturn for the year ended 31 
March 2021 and compared it with the latest approved budget providing 
explanations of the significant variances.  The report also contained the capital 
outturn for the year ended 31 March 2021.  This report had already been 
considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 15 June and an additional 
appendix had been provided which showed the effect of Covid loss of income 
and additional expenditure on the revised balanced budget for 2020/21. 
 
Members asked about the uncertainty of the data on the overspend on the waste 
contract and agreed to a review of the work by an independent reviewer.  The 
outcome of this review would make any necessary adjustments to the accounts 
for the audit process and be presented at the next Audit Committee. 
 
DECISION 
 
A. The provisional outturn position of an overspend of £784K after Covid-19 

compensation is noted (shown at Table 4.6). This is before accounting 
adjustments and transfers. 

 
B. The capital outturn position at 31st March is 2021 be noted.  
 
C. That unspent capital budget is carried forward into the Capital programme for 

2021-22. 
 
D. The contributions to earmarked reserves as detailed in Table 6.1 be 

approved. 
 

19 CENTENARY HOUSE, BASINGSTOKE  
 

Page 8



 
 7 

 

The item was for noting only. Members were advised that Hart had completed 
the purchase of Centenary House in Basingstoke for £11,610,881.  The 
purchase will offer the Council a rental income of £730,155 per annum overall at 
an initial yield of 6%, the net yield figure to be provided in the next few days.  
The source of the purchase funding was from internal borrowing. 
 

20 APPROVAL OF REFRESHED COMMERCIAL PROPERTY INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY  
 
This report required Cabinet approval of a refreshed Commercial Property 
Investment Strategy. 
 
A draft of the report had been debated at Overview & Scrutiny. The revised 
report had been refreshed and points clarified around yield and overall selection 
criteria for potential properties.   
 
DECISION 
 
That Cabinet approved the refreshed Commercial Property Investment Strategy 
(Appendix 1). 
 

21 CIVIC CAMPUS REGENERATION GOVERNANCE  
 
This report set out the revised Terms of Reference as a framework for the 
development of regeneration opportunities for the civic campus, to take the 
project forward. 
 
Members asked for clarity on the wording of the terms of reference of up to 3 
ward members from the Fleet wards and changes in the composition of the 
group makeup to be amended and incorporate a wider representation from 
Hampshire County Council and Fleet Town Council. 
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet agreed to the refreshed Terms of Reference for the Civic Centre 
Regeneration Working Group (as set out in Appendix 1) to enable the 
consideration, evaluation, and delivery of the regeneration of the civic campus 
but to include the amendment of dual hatted representatives. 
 

22 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY WORKING 
GROUP  
 
Members agreed to amend the Terms of Reference for the Climate Emergency 
Working Group to include the Leader of the Council and Friends of the Earth be 
represented on the working group along with other organisation’s contributions. 
 
DECISION 
 

Page 9



 
 8 

 

That the amended Terms of Reference for the Climate Emergency Working 
Group (as at Appendix A) are approved. 
 

23 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & LICENSING LOCAL ENFORCEMENT PLAN  
 
Members of Cabinet considered the Environmental Health & Licensing Local 
Enforcement Plan and were advised that this report went to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee prior to approval by Cabinet. 
 
DECISION 
 
That Cabinet: 
1. Adopted the Environmental Health & Licensing Local Enforcement Plan. 
2. Authorised the Head of Place, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 

Regulatory, to make minor alterations and typographical corrections to the 
document before it is published. 

 
24 RENEWAL OF THE SHARED LICENSING SERVICE WITH BASINGSTOKE & 

DEANE BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
Members considered the renewal of the Shared Licensing Service between Hart 
District Council and Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council.  The main 
advantages being the creation of efficiency in procedures, increasing the use of 
electronic case management systems and introducing effective compliance and 
enforcement checks.  Members discussed the certainty of the timescale of the 
service, the cost benefits and ability to transfer data back. 
 
DECISION 
 
1. Cabinet agreed to the renewal of the Shared Licensing Service between Hart 

District Council and Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council; and 
2. That the Head of Place, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 

Regulatory Services, be authorised to agree the details of a refreshed deed 
associated with renewal of the Shared Licensing Service between Hart 
District Council and Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council. 

 
25 NOMINATIONS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/2022  

 
Cabinet considered the nominations to Hart’s approved list of Outside Bodies (as 
set out in Appendix 1). 
 
Members agreed to: 

• Stop attending Hampshire Partnership. 
• Change the representation for Hampshire Police and Crime Panel to a 

Member of Cabinet. 
• Contact some organisations for further nominations including Inclusion 

Hampshire and The Vine Day Centre. 
 
DECISION 

Page 10



 
 9 

 

 
The Cabinet  
1. Approved the list of outside bodies appointed (as shown at Appendix 1). 
2. Nominated and approved representatives to the Outside Bodies (as shown at 

Appendix 1). 

Page 11



 
 10 

 

 
Appendix 1 
 

HART REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22 
 

Outside Bodies No. of Representatives Nominee(s) 

Basingstoke Canal Joint 
Management Committee 

2 Councillors (normally taken 
from Wards that include the line 
of the Canal) 

1. Ambler 
2. Crookes 

Blackbushe Airport 
Consultative Committee 

2 Councillors 1. Quarterman 
2. Crisp 

Blackbushe Metals Liaison 
Panel 

2 Councillors 1. Crisp 
2. Harward 

Blackwater Valley Advisory 
Committee for Public 
Transport 

2 Councillors 1. Quarterman 
2. Oliver 

Blackwater Valley 
Recreation & Countryside 
Management Committee 

2 Councillors 
(1xCabinet Member) 

1. Neighbour 
2. Vacant 

Citizens Advice Hart 1 Councillor (1xCabinet Member) Bailey 

Crookham Almshouse 
Charity (Trustee) 

1 Councillor Butler 

District Health and 
Wellbeing Forum 

1 Councillor Bailey 

Enterprise M3 Leaders 
Board 

1 Councillor (Leader) Neighbour 

Farnborough Aerodrome 
Consultative Committee 
(FACC) 

2 Councillors 
1 Reserve Councillor 

1. Radley 
2. Axam 
Reserve: Ambler 

Fleet Business Improvement 
District 

1 Councillor Oliver 

Fleet Pond Society 1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 

Wright 
Reserve: Wheale 

Hampshire Police and 
Crime Panel 

1 Councillor (1xCabinet Member) Bailey 

Hart Voluntary Action 1 Councillor (1xCabinet Member) Bailey 

Inclusion Hampshire 1 Councillor Vacant 

LGA General Assembly 
(Annual Event) 

1 Councillor 
(Leader or Deputy Leader) 

Neighbour 
Reserve: Radley 

Local Government 
Association HIOW and  

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 
(Leader & Deputy Leader) 

Radley 
Reserve: Oliver 

Military Community 
Covenant 

1 Councillor Dorn 

North East Hampshire 
CPRE 

1 Councillor (observer) Clarke 

Page 12



 
 11 

 

North Hampshire Road 
Safety Council 

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 

Oliver 
Reserve: Butcher 

Project Integra Strategy 
Board 

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 
(2xCabinet Members) 

Oliver 
Reserve: 
Neighbour 

Safer North Hampshire 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

1 Cabinet Member Bailey 

South East England 
Councils (SEEC) 

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 

Neighbour 
Reserve: Radley 

Thames Basin Heaths – 
Joint Strategic Partnership   

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 

Radley 
Reserve: Cockarill 

Thames Basin Heaths – 
Strategic Access 
Management and 
Monitoring Project Board  

1 Councillor 
1 Reserve Councillor 

Radley 
Reserve: Cockarill 

The Vine Day Centre 1 Councillor Vacant 

Vivid Housing Association 1 Councillor (observer) Bailey 
Reserve: Head of 
Community 
Services 

 
 
 

26 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Cabinet Work Programme was considered and amended. 
 
1. Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy to push back to September. 
2. Park Run support to be added in August. 
 

27 ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS GRANT 5.0  
 
This report required Cabinet to approve further Additional Restrictions Grant 
scheme targeted at specific businesses adversely affected by the extended 
restrictions as at 21 June 2021. 
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet approved the Policy for the payment of Extended Restrictions Grant 
detailed in Section 4 of the report. 
 
The meeting closed at 9.57 pm 
 
 

Page 13



 

TECHNICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
OFFICERS CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP 

MEETING NOTES 
 
Date and Time: 
 

Tuesday 20th July 2021   14:30pm 

Place: Teams Virtual Meeting 
 
Present: 
Cllr David Neighbour  - DN 
Cllr Alan Oliver   - AO 
Cllr Gill Butler   - GB 
Cllr Anne Crampton  - AR 
Peter Summersell   - PS 
John Elson    - JE 
Adam Green    - AG 
Wilf Hardy    - WH 
Tamsin Briggs   - TB  
 

 

Item  Action 

1.0 Introduction and apologies –  
 
Apologies received from Cllr James Radley and Cllr Alex Drage 

 

   

2.0 Frequency for future Working Group Meetings  

   

2.1 It was agreed meetings would be held bi-monthly moving forwards 
via TEAMS.  There is the option for any workshop-based ones to be 
in person at the Council Offices 

 

   

3.0 Update on key actions from Hart Climate Change Action Plan  

   

3.1 Peter provided verbal updates on the Climate Change Action Plan 
previously circulated.  Key discussion on the points were: 

 

   

3.2 Working on critical carbon pathways for Hart own emission.  
Consultants have been engaged to understand policy gaps to get to 
targets and set out carbon pathways.    
 
Draft dates for carbon pathway timeline to be provided  

PS/JE 

   

3.3 Carbon literacy training proposed for members and key staff to be 
held Autumn 2021  

 

   

3.4 Energy audit of civic offices & workshop carried out and first draft 
received. To be circulated when available 
 
Energy audits of the leisure centres and buildings in Basingstoke 
and Eastleigh to be undertaken.  Flats at Edenbrook to also be 
included in ratings  

PS 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

   

3.5 
 

Secured funding through consortium for energy efficiency scheme 
for low-income residents to run until end of 2021.  A bid for Phase 3 
funding now being made  

 

   

3.6 Solar Together Scheme now completed, but there is no date for 
surveying of properties in Hart yet 

 

   

3.7 Will be bidding as part of consortium for Sustainable Warm Fund, 
follows on from GHG LAD2 starting 2022. 

 

   

3.8 Survey carried out of Leisure centres to add to the site for EV 
charger. Hart Leisure Centre is ok to add, but Frogmore Leisure 
Centre land owned by Hampshire County Council.  Work already 
completed for funding so will be in position to proceed once tender 
process complete. 
 
To be delivered in current financial year 

PS 

3.9 Government Heating & Building Strategy due to support the 
decarbonisation strategy of heating in buildings.  Group to be 
advised when available 

PS 
 
 

   

3.10 Tree canopy underway, initially looking at 33-34%.  Tree strategy will 
identify opportunity for maintaining quality of trees at no net loss.  A 
project of tree giveaway with the public being considered. 

 

   

3.11 A group has been established to look at opportunities coming out of 
environment bill 

 

   

3.12 Carbon offsetting as a last resort would be the restoration of peat 
bogs 

 

   

3.13 Meeting held with Serco.  Carbon reporting data updated and 
carbon management plan meeting on 4th August. 

 

   

3.14 Initial audit of Frogmore Leisure lighting completed.  Regular 
meetings to be set up with corporate side of Everyone Active 

 

   

3.15 UN Conference for Climate Change to be held in November.  To 
look at opportunities how this can be promoted 

PS 

   

3.16 National Food Strategy last week. To look at how reducing meat-
based diets and increasing plant based can be promoted as a 
climate change message 

PS 

   

3.17 Sustainability statement being worked on for community gardens in 
Edenbrook 

 

   

3.18 Climate Change promotion – Great Big Green Week (18-26 Sept).  
Any ideas welcome 

 

   

Page 15



 

3.19 How we promote to individual residents action they can take, how to 
make positive changes 
 
Use existing website to clearly signpost where this information 
already exists instead of producing own. 

JE 

   

4.0 AOB  

   

4.1 
 

AC asked the group how much was being done on mitigation of 
climate change problems in relation to flooding.  JE updated on 
schemes for known problems, and investigation into future schemes.  
Being proactive as a Council 
 
For drains and sewage systems there is an Overview and Scrutiny 
Liaison Group with Flood Partnerships Group with EA and Thames 
Water, where these issues can be addressed. AC to be invited to 
their next meeting 
 
AO advised need to look at fire risks due to large amount of 
heathland  
 
PS working on technical advice notes for planning adapting to higher 
temperatures in summer and wetter colder temperatures in winter 
 
AG advised tree planting as urban cooling being looked at 
  

JE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PS 
 
 
AG 

   

5.0 Agree future meeting dates  
 

 

   

5.1 Future meetings to be arranged for September & November 2021 
and January, March, and May 2022 
 

PS 

 

Page 16



 

 

 

CABINET 

 

DATE OF MEETING:   5 AUGUST 2021 

 

TITLE OF REPORT: HART DISTRICT COUNCIL CUSTOMER 

CARE POLICIES 

 

Report of:   Joint Chief Executive 

 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor David Neighbour, Leader 

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 

To refresh and update Hart District Councils Customer Care Standards both 

reflecting and respecting the changing nature of demand from our residents.   
 

2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Cabinet approve:  

  

2.1 The revised Customer Care Standards as set out in Appendix A. 

 

2.2 The revised Policy and Guidance for Dealing with Unreasonable Customer Behaviour 

as set out in Appendix B. 
 

3 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 The Council adopted, back in 2013, refreshed Customer Care Standards and a new 

policy for the management of dealing with persistent, vexatious and unreasonable 

customer behaviour. These policies have been reviewed and retained every two 

years since that time. 

 

3.2 As part of an ongoing broader review of policies and procedures, a real opportunity 

has arisen to further refresh and update the Customer Care Standards and Policy for 

dealing with Unreasonable Customer Behaviour in light of experience of managing 

these policies over a period of years, changes in customer expectations and evolution 

in our digital agenda, most recently exemplified during the Covid-19 pandemic (e.g. a 

move from face to face to virtual Employment Skills Centre) 
 

3.3 As a Council, we aim to be customer focussed, and this is embedded into the DNA 

of our organisation via the HART values, which we use in both the recruitment and 

performance management of our staff. 

 

3.4 Naturally, there will still be times when we occasionally get things wrong and our 

approach is to investigate and solve problems as quickly as possible.  As part of this, 

the Council welcomes criticism and complaints as a legitimate part of the relationship 

between the council and its local community. Most complainants pursue their 

complaints in a reasonable and acceptable manner.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

https://www.hart.gov.uk/the-council/news/hart-employment-skills-centre-goes-virtual
https://www.hart.gov.uk/the-council/news/hart-employment-skills-centre-goes-virtual
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/About_the_council/HART%20values%20strategy%20final%20updated%20August%202017.pdf


 

 

 

 

3.5 However, in a minority of cases, people pursue their complaints in a way which can 

either impede the investigation of their complaint, can have significant resource issues 

for the council or are unreasonable by virtue of their behaviour.  This can happen 

either while their complaint is being investigated, or once the council has finished 
dealing with the complaint.     
 

4 CONSIDERATIONS 

 

4.1 To help our residents, to understand what they can expect from the Council, bearing 

in mind we have established a series of different methods by which they can contact 

us on a variety of different topics,                                   

 The Customer Care Standards sets out our public commitment to our 

residents, how we will continue to develop our staff, systems and processes 

to improve customer service excellence.  

 The Unreasonable Customer Behaviour policy set out the behaviours that are 

not acceptable when accessing the Councils services, via any channel and what 

actions we might take if behaviours persist.  

As such these documents can be viewed as twinned documents providing a clear 

statement of expectation on both parties. 

 

4.2 The Customer Care Standards has been considered by the Councils ‘Change 

Champions’ Group; a group of officers drawn from across the organisation who are 

committed to service excellence and improvements. The standards have been 

rewritten with simplified language, making it easier for our residents to read and 

easier to understand; with the use of streamlined response times, plain English and 

removal of jargon. They have also been considered by Management and Leadership 

Teams. 

 

4.3 The Unreasonable Customer Behaviour Policy has been updated to reflect the most 
recent guidance provided by the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO). Whilst the 

policy remains true to the original policy adopted in 2013, in keeping with the 

updated LGO guidance, this policy makes specific reference to the use of racist, 

sexist, homophobic or other discriminatory language as being unacceptable. This is in 

line with our obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty and our own policies  

which celebrates diversity, challenges intolerance and discrimination and positively 

promotes equality and community cohesion.  
 

4.4 The Customer Care Standards removes standards which the Council is unable to 

record, measure and report on. However recognising the changes within the 

communities which we serve, it has been updated to reflect the greater reliance on 

electronic forms of communication and the commensurate reduction in letters that 

the Council is now receiving. For instance, it provides more detail regarding the 

Council’s ‘offer’ with regard to channels that have been developed, such as Web 

Chat functionality and both policies refer to what can be expected if contacting us via 

social media platforms. 

 
 

Page 18



 

 

 

4.5 The Unreasonable Behaviour policy in particular establishes: 
 

4.5.1 The definitions of such behaviours 

4.5.2 Triggers which may cause the policy to be invoked 

4.5.3 A list of options available to the council 
4.5.4 A clear delineation regarding the decision to invoke the policy 

4.5.5 Guidance on the nature of records to be kept 

4.5.6 What information is provided to the complainants when the policy is applied 

4.5.7 Details of when the complainant can expect their case to be reviewed. 

 

4.6 The policies were considered at Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 20th July                       

2021.  One minor amendment to the wording was suggested for the Customer Care 

Standard which was taken on board and amended, however Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee had no comments to forward to Cabinet.  

 

 

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

 

5 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND CRIME AND DISORDER 

 

5.1 A screening assessment for equalities has been carried out on the two attached 

documents and there are no identified negative or positive impacts arising. There are 

no crime and disorder implications to be considered 

 

  

CONTACT:    Joint Chief Executive 

EXTENSION: 4450   EMAIL:  patricia.hughes@hart.gov.uk  

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A Customer Care Standards 

Appendix B Policy and guidance for dealing with Unreasonable Customer Behaviour 

 
 

Page 19

mailto:patricia.hughes@hart.gov.uk


Appendix A 

Customer Care standard 
 
Current ----> Home>Feedback>embedded link 
OR -----> Home>The Council>Policies & published documents>Corporate policies 
Recommended -------> Contact Us page 

 

Our commitment to you 

We aim to provide an excellent service no matter how you contact us. We take pride in 

treating people well, being accessible to all our communities and providing a helpful outcome 

to any enquiry. We want to ensure that everyone who contacts us, for whatever reason, is 

pleased with the service that they receive. If any of our customers ever feel disappointed 

about any aspect of our service, we would like to know.  

We promise that: 

We take ownership of your enquiry 

 We will resolve queries within service levels set out here to get it right first time for 

you  

 If we don’t know the answer immediately, we will go away and find out for you and let 

you know of any issues along the way 

 We will be clear about our proposed actions and anticipated timescales. 

We are helpful and transparent 

 We will communicate in plain, clear language so that it is easy for you to understand  

 We will be honest and open when we cannot provide you the service you want and 

give you the reasons why 

 We will continually develop our staff and improve our systems and processes so that 

we can deliver excellent customer service to you. 

We listen to you and act on what you tell us 

 We will make sure there is a variety of opportunities for you to engage with us and 

tell us what you think of our services and how we can improve 

 We will let participants know of the final outcome of their enquiry and if we can’t meet 

your request, we will tell you why. 

What you can expect from us 

We are committed to design and build more of our services online and make them available 

24 hours a day. This will help you to apply for services, report problems, provide accessible 

services and make payments and bookings. We will provide information in alternative 

formats and languages when we receive a request.  

When you phone us 

We will answer the phone as quickly as possible. The person who answers your call will aim 

to resolve your query there and then. If we cannot answer your query, we will provide you 

with a timescale for coming back to you with answer. 

 

  

Page 20



Appendix A 

When you write, email or use our online forms 

We will respond to simple enquiries within five working days and all enquiries within ten 

working days. If we cannot respond within ten working days, we will explain why and tell you 

when to expect a response. For Freedom of Information requests, we will respond within 20 

days.  

We will write to you clearly and avoid complicated terms and jargon. If the staff member you 

contact is away, you will receive an automatic reply giving their return date and details of an 

alternative contact. 

When you meet with us 

We will provide computers and Wi-Fi in our reception area so you can make an online 

enquiry if you do not have an appointment, or we do not offer the service you want face to 

face. If you need it, we will help you to complete your enquiry online on your smartphone or 

on a computer. 

If you wish to meet with a specific officer, please contact them to make an appointment in 

advance of visiting us. Our officers can be out of the office, on site, or in other meetings. 

If we meet you elsewhere, we will arrive promptly and show you council identification to 

confirm who we are. 

When you contact us via the website or social media 

We will publish up to date and relevant information on our website to help answer your 

query. We will also provide webchat managed by our Customer Services and Council Tax 

teams during office hours.  

We will monitor social media regularly throughout the working day and where possible and 

appropriate will respond to your contact as soon as we can. If we need longer to look into 

your query, we will contact you to let you know this and when you can expect a full 

response. We will monitor social media over weekends and bank holidays for emergencies. 

How you can help us 

So that we can deliver on our promise to you, we need you to: 

 Treat our staff courteously and with respect so that they can deliver the best service 

possible to you 

 Inform us of any changes in your personal circumstances which may affect services 

we provide to you 

 Please be patient with us and avoid making unnecessary repeat contact with us 

whilst you are waiting for your response. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



Appendix A 

Current 
standard 

Change comments Proposed new standard Changes from MT & Communications 
Team 

Introduction  Unable to define or measure high 
standard of care 

 
 

 Freshened up to emphasise positive 
experience 

 Changed emphasis on “we promise 
to” to include implicit reference to 
Hart values and written to be 
applicable to all channels 

 Removed specific reference to Data 
Protection & FOI as contained 
elsewhere 

 Removed specific ref to visiting staff 
as mentioned elsewhere 

 We will take ownership, reworded 
to be specific that service levels are 
contained in this doc 

 We are helpful & transparent, 
simplified language  

 We listen to you…, simplified 
language 

 Move “develop staff” to helpful and 

transparent 

 

Telephone  Currently not able to  measure or 
report on speed of telephone 
answering (outside of contact 
centre) 

 Highlighted the difference in service 
if complex query 

 Standard to state as quickly as 
possible which allows for and 
includes busy periods.  

 Provide a timescale to get back to 
customer 

 

Write  Currently not able to measure or 
report on timescales taken to 
respond to letters (except through 
complaint processes) 

 Wrapped up write, email and online 
forms 

 Five working days – simple 
enquiries (improved from previous 
standard which was 10 days for all 
matters) 

 Ten working days – all enquiries 

 Beyond ten days – provide a 
timescale 

 Use plain English, no jargon 

 Included FOI reference 

 Simplified language around if staff 
member is away with details of 
alternative contact – this will need 
education 

Email, text & 
social media 

 Again, as an organisation, we are 
unable to measure timescales to 
respond to email enquiries (not all 
emails relate to enquiries from 

 Respond to Facebook & Twitter 
during office hours and monitored 
over weekends & bank hols 

 Re-worded to make more generic 
with regards to all social media 
platforms (not just FaceBook and 
Twitter as we also have LinkedIn 
and Instagram) 

P
age 22



Appendix A 

Members of the Public, or 
Councillors)  

 Email more akin to written 
correspondence as the quantum 
has massively increased since 
these standards were originally 
adopted 

 Removed reference to text as this is 
not used as a method of 
communication with the Council  

Visit  Time taken to deal with customers 
at front reception currently not 
recorded (NB: the Council has never 
received a complaint or any 
feedback other than positive 
regarding front reception) 

 Combined visit & visiting into one 
section 

 Removed timescale of five mins 
when visiting the office as this is not 
measured, nor recorded. 
 

Visiting  Not always possible to provide “as 
much notice as possible” due to 
enforcement requirements 

How you can 
help 

 Remove reference to spam emails, 
not required 

 Simplified and reduced number of 
bullet points 

 

Contact  Customers provided with Chief 
Executive email address 

 Removed as available on website 
where contact details available 

 

General  Standard hidden on site 

 Four page pdf not accessible 

 Internal document format 

 Out of date. Created Dec 2012, 
unclear if reviewed in 2018 

 EqIA requires a refresh 

 Moved standard to html page with 
accessibility included on page 

 

 Suggested new home for standards 
on contact us  

 

P
age 23



  APPENDIX B 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy and Guidance for Dealing with Unreasonable Customer 

Behaviour 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Date created December 2012 

Review date May 2021 

Effective date June 2021 

Equality Impact Assessment Date undertaken: June 2021 

Issues Issues: None 

Department Corporate 

Version 3.0 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 24



  APPENDIX B 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council is committed to provide our services to the public, fairly and 

impartially and making our services as accessible as possible.  
 
1.2 As such, we aim to provide a high quality of service to all of our customers. 

However, when things fall short of this standard, we will deal with those who 
have a complaint honestly and respectfully, trying to understand what outcome 
you want to achieve and providing alternative solutions, where available to help 
resolve the issue. 

 
 1.3 Criticism and complaints against the council are a welcome and legitimate part 

of the relationship between the council and its local community. They are a 
valuable source of feedback on the operations of the council and assist in 
improving service quality.  

 
1.4 We enjoy professional, courteous, respectful contact with almost all customers, 
 whatever the outcome of our work. This policy is here to help explain our  
 expectations and encourage an effective working relationship.  

 
Most complainants pursue their complaints in a reasonable and acceptable 
manner. A very small minority, however: 

 

 persist unreasonably with their complaints (persistent complainants)  

 make complaints in order to make life difficult for the council rather than to 
genuinely resolve a grievance (vexatious complainants)  

 are abusive, offensive or threatening (unreasonable complainants) 
 
and these are the definitions used within this policy. 

 
1.5 In those cases where individual staff or teams (including those in shared and 

externalised services acting on our behalf), Councillors or the council as a 
whole suffer adversely from persistent, vexatious or unreasonable complaints, 
this policy will be applied. 

 
1.6 This policy covers all forms of contact to staff and Councillors such as 

telephone, text, letter, email, social media or face to face contact.  
 
1.7 Unreasonable behaviour may, depending on the seriousness, include only one 

or two isolated incidents.  Persistent and vexatious behaviour is usually 
considered an accumulation of incidents or unreasonable behaviour over a 
longer period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



  APPENDIX B 
 

2.0 Examples of unreasonable customer behaviour 
 
2.1 The following list, taken from information provided by the Local Government 

Ombudsman and recommended for inclusion in local council policies, provides 
examples of behaviour by complainants which may be described as 
persistent, vexatious or unreasonable.  We will not tolerate behaviours such 
as:  

 

 Refusing to specify the grounds of a complaint, despite offers of help  

 Refusing to co-operate with the complaints investigation process  

 Refusing to accept that certain issues are not within the scope of the 

Complaints Procedure (e.g. Parking Ticket Appeals) 

 Insisting on the complaint being dealt with in ways which are incompatible with 

the Corporate Complaints Policy or with good practice  

 Demanding special treatment/immediate escalation to a manager repeatedly  

 Making unjustified complaints about staff who are trying to deal with issues, 

and seeking to have them replaced  

 Changing the basis of the complaint as the investigation proceeds 

 Denying or changing statements he or she made at an earlier stage  

 Introducing trivial or irrelevant new information at a later stage  

 Raising numerous, detailed but unimportant questions; insisting they are all 

answered 

 Covertly recording meetings and conversations 

 Submitting falsified documents from themselves or others 

 Adopting a ‘scatter gun’ approach: pursuing parallel complaints on the same 

issue with the same department, other departments of the council, with 

Councillors, the MP or Local Government Ombudsman 

 Making excessive demands on the time and resources of staff with lengthy 

phone calls, emails to numerous Council staff/Councillors, or detailed letters 

every few days, and expecting immediate responses 

 Submitting repeat complaints with minor additions/variations that the 

complainant insists make these ‘new’ complaints 

 Refusing to accept the decision 

 Repeatedly arguing points with no new evidence 

 Using racist, sexist, homophobic or other discriminatory language or offensive, 

threatening, aggressive or violent behaviour towards us. 

 
 

3.0 How we will respond 
 
3.1 If a complainant contacts the council because they are unhappy about the 

response to a complaint, it is important to understand why they are unhappy. If 
it is because the response does not cover all issues raised in the original 
complaint, this should be addressed. If the complainant is unhappy with the 
outcome of the complaint they should be encouraged to escalate their 

Page 26



  APPENDIX B 
 

complaint to the next stage of the council’s complaints procedure, details of 
which can be found on the council’s website. 

 
3.2 If the complainant will not agree to escalation of their complaint or has 

exhausted the complaints escalation procedure but still persists in contacting 
the council about the same issue, the matter should be referred to the relevant 
Head of Service. 

 
3.3 Where staff are subject to unreasonable behaviour (such as verbal abuse) 

during a telephone call, site visit or face to face interview, they should advise 
the person concerned that the behaviour is unacceptable and that continued 
behaviour of this nature will lead to the telephone call/visit being aborted.1 

 
3.4 Notwithstanding the form of contact (telephone, email, fax, face to face, text 

etc.) officers are required to keep detailed and chronological notes of the case 
including time, dates and what was said, whilst it is still fresh in their memory. 
Information held in different parts of the Council may be shared, where a 
complainant is making repeated or similar complaints to different people, 
services or departments. 

 
3.5 This evidence, as well as any documentary evidence must be passed without 

delay to a Joint Chief Executive who will reach a decision as to whether they 
consider that the complainant is being unreasonable, persistent or vexatious. 
The Joint Chief Executive must be satisfied before taking any action that the 
complainant’s individual circumstances have been taken into account 
including such issues as age, disability, gender, race, religion or belief.   

 
3.6 Where it is concluded that the complainants’ behaviour is unreasonable, in 

most instances the relevant Head of Service will contact the complainant and 
tell them why we have reached this decision and ask them to change their 
behaviour.  Details will be shared with all Heads of Service to ensure 
behaviour of a similar kind, is not used elsewhere within the organisation. 

 
3.7 If their behaviour continues, we will take action to restrict the complainant’s 

contact with the Council.  Any such restrictions will be evidence based, 
appropriate and proportionate and the complainant will in most circumstances 
be advised in writing why we believe their behaviour is unacceptable, what 
action we are taking and its planned duration.  We will also tell them should 
the complaint still be under consideration six months later, we will review 
whether the restrictions imposed are still necessary and should remain.  

 
3.8 Where the behaviour is so extreme that it threatens the immediate safety and 

welfare of the council’s staff or Councillors, we may report the matter to the 
police or consider taking legal action. In such cases, we may not give the 
complainant prior warning of our intended actions. 

 
3.9 In arriving at a decision to restrict access to services, any known relevant 

factors such as disability, language or illness will be fully considered.  
 

                                            
1 Please note, officers have the discretion to end the call/abort the visit without advising the 
complainant of their unacceptable behaviour, where to do so, may inflame or worsen the situation. 

Page 27



  APPENDIX B 
 

3.10 The most likely options for restricting access or taking other actions will be:-   
 

 Specifying that contact will take place in a particular form (for example, a 
maximum one letter a week) 

 Or through a single named member of staff or at specific days or times 

 Requiring the complainant to enter into an agreement about their future 
behaviour before their case proceeds 

 Managing the case through an independent advocate such as via the Citizens 
Advice  

 Other suitable actions, in light of the complainant’s circumstances 

 In extreme cases repeated contact may be deemed to be harassment, the 
case may be reported to the police 

 If a complainant continues to behave unreasonably, and overrides the 
restrictions placed on access to the council’s services, we may decide to 
terminate contact with them and discontinue any investigation into their 
complaint 

 If the Council has completed its investigation into the complaint, we will review 
the decision if material new evidence is submitted (Legal Services may be 
consulted on the materiality of new evidence). Other submissions on the same 
matter will be read and placed on file, but no other action will be taken 

 New complaints from people, whose behaviour has previously been deemed 
unreasonable, persistent or vexatious, will be treated on their merits. 
Restrictions imposed in respect of an earlier complaint will not automatically 
apply to a new matter. 

 
3.11 In taking the action described above, it must be emphasised that the policy 

should only be used as a last resort and after all other reasonable measures 
have been taken to resolve complaints or complainant behaviour.  

 

4.0 Sharing information and record keeping  
 
4.1 We may share information regarding your behaviour and any restrictions on 

access to our services internally with other staff, Councillors or other services 
within the Council. There may be certain circumstances where we would need 
to share information about how you engaged with the council, externally. For 
example, where we are required to do so by law, for safeguarding purposes or 
in risk of harm or emergency situations.  

 
4.2 The Council will keep information about any decisions taken under this policy 

for two years after any action or restriction has been lifted. 
 

5.0 Other policies 
 
5.1 This policy should be read in association with the council’s policies on our 

Customer Service Standards, our Compliments, Complaints, and Comments 
Policy, Corporate Health and Safety Policy, and Equalities Objectives 2021-
2023 

 
  

Page 28



  APPENDIX B 
 

Appendix 1  
 

Checklist of Issues for Joint Chief Executive to take into consideration whether 
complainant’s actions are unreasonably persistent or vexatious 

 
The decision to designate someone’s behaviour as unreasonable, and restrict their 
access to the council, could have serious consequences for the individual. So, you 
should be satisfied that: 
 

Consideration Evidence Officer 
sign off 

What is the evidence that the person’s 
behaviour is unreasonable, persistent or 
vexatious? 

  

Has the person’s complaint been investigated 
properly? 

  

Has communication with the complainant been 
adequate? 

  

Is the complainant now providing any significant 
new information that might affect the councils 
view on the complaint? 

  

Have any equalities issues have been 
considered  

  

That any decision to restrict access is, based on 
the above evidence, the right course of action 

  

 
Have you considered the following actions? 
 

Action Yes No  Rationale 

Offering the complainant a meeting with an officer of 
appropriate seniority to explore scope for a resolution of 
the complaint and explain why their current behaviour is 
seen as unreasonable. 

   

Sharing the vexatious complainant policy with the 
complainant and warning them that restrictive actions may 
need to be applied if their behaviour continues 

   

Liaising with all relevant services/staff/Councillors/shared 
or externalised services to discuss suggested approaches 
to restricting access to services. 

   

Designating a key officer to co-ordinate the organisation’s 
response(s). 

   

Helping the complainant to find a suitable independent 
advocate especially if the complainant has different needs. 

   

Are there any aggravating matters which suggest that the 
case should be reported to the police? 

   

Are there any other reasonable actions you could consider 
in line with the policy 

   

 

Page 29



   

CABINET 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 5th August, 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: COMMUNITY TRIGGER POLICY 
  
Report of:  Head of Community 
  
Cabinet Portfolio:  Community 
  
Key Decision No 
  
  
Confidentiality Non Exempt 
  

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

The Community Trigger was introduced in the Antisocial Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 to provide a mechanism for victims of persistent anti-
social behaviour to request that relevant bodies undertake a case review. 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the policy drawn up 
so it can be adopted and implemented. 

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the Community 

Trigger Policy.  
  
3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
3.5 

We know that, where left unchecked, anti-social behaviour (ASB) can have 
an overwhelming impact on its victims and, in some cases, on the wider 
community. 
 
The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced specific 
measures designed to give victims and communities a say in the way that 
complaints of ASB are dealt with and included access to an ASB Case 
Review process known as the ‘Community Trigger’.  
 
The Community Trigger gives victims of persistent ASB reported to any of the 
main responsible agencies - most commonly the council, police or housing 
provider - the right to request a multi-agency case review of their case, where 
a local threshold of three reports in a six-month period is met. 
 
Agencies, including local authorities, the police, local health teams and 
registered providers of social housing have a duty to undertake a case review 
when someone requests one and their case meets the locally defined 
threshold. 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



   

Each area is required to choose a lead agency to manage the process, for 
Hart this is Hart District Council. 

  
4 MAIN ISSUES 
  
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 

As the identified lead agency for managing the Community Trigger in Hart, 
Hart District Council should publish their Community Trigger procedure to 
ensure that victims of persistent ASB are aware that they can apply to 
activate the procedures in appropriate circumstances.  
 
Government guidance stipulates that the Community Trigger procedure 
should be provided on the website of all the relevant bodies, signposting the 
public to the lead agency’s website, a point of contact and the procedures for 
activating the process.  
 
Additionally, to ensure transparency of the system rather than to judge the 
performance of the agencies in relation to ASB casework, the lead agency 
also has a duty to publish annually the following data1: 
 

 the number of applications for ASB Case Reviews received 
 the number of times the threshold for review was not met 
 the number of ASB case reviews carried out 
 the number of ASB case reviews that resulted in recommendations 

being made 
 
At present, this information is accessed through the Hart Community Safety 
website page via a link to the Safer North Hampshire website as this suited 
the previously shared Community Safety service arrangements – this should 
now be held within Hart with a Hart Policy and published on the Hart website. 
 

4.5 Overview and Scrutiny Committee had a useful debate about this paper and 
asked for a point in Section 9 regarding anonymity to be clarified.  The policy 
has been updated to reflect this request with a clearer explanation and the 
insertion of a footnote around the requirements of local authorities to publish 
Community Trigger data but not Community Triggers themselves. Further 
questioning was asserted around plans to communicate and promote the 
policy which will be addressed comprehensively upon adoption. 

  
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
  
5.1 
 
 
 
 

Failing to adopt a clear Community Trigger Policy and publish it to our 
website could pose a potential reputational risk to the council as it could be 
seen as Hart District Council not supporting Hart residents that have been 
victims of persistent ASB.  
 

  

                                            
1 Published information must not include details which could identify victims. 

Page 31



   

  
6 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
  
6.1 Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or The Hart Vision 2040 
  
6.1.1 
 
 
 
6.1.2 

ASB is referenced in the Corporate Plan under the priority for A Clean, 
Green and Safe Environment where we have pledged to work closely with 
partners to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour.  
 
It is further intrinsically linked with the following two ‘golden threads’ that link 
our Vision, and Strategic Priorities to each Service Plan and our day-to-day 
working priorities because we know from experience that persistent ASB can 
have a significantly detrimental impact upon mental health over time:  

 There is support for the most vulnerable 

 Our population is healthy and well educated 

  
6.2 Service Plan 

 

Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? No 

Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set 
aside for this proposal?  

Yes 

  

  
7 Legal and Constitutional Issues 
  
7.1 No direct legal or constitutional issues arising from the recommendations. 
  
8 Financial and Resource Implications 
  
8.1 
 

No direct financial or resource impacts arising from the recommendations. 

9 Risk Management 
  
9.1 Risks are around reputation of the council and whether we openly and 

transparently support our residents to challenge our ASB processes and 
responses and further ensure that we hold partners to account on behalf of 
residents too. 

  
10 EQUALITIES 
  

10.1 The Community Trigger Policy gives due regard to the Council’s duty to 
promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
promote good relations between people who share protected characteristics 
under the Equalities Act and those who do not.  
 

11 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
  
11.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 

  

Page 32



   

  
12 ACTION 
  
12.1 Cabinet is asked to approve the adoption of this policy.  

 

 
Contact Details: Kirsty Jenkins, Head of Community Services 
   Kirsty.jenkins@hart.gov.uk  
 
Appendices  
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Community Trigger Policy        
 

Page 33

mailto:Kirsty.jenkins@hart.gov.uk


                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

 

 

 

HART COMMUNITY SAFETY 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER 

POLICY & PROCEDURE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Last Revised: July 2021 
Version: 1.1 
Owner: Community Safety Manager  

Page 34



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

1. Introduction 

The Community Trigger, also known as the ASB case review, is a 
statutory provision introduced in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014. It is a safety net for victims of anti-social behaviour.   

The Community Trigger is the victim’s right to request a review of 
their case if they feel that no effective action has been taken to 
resolve it. The community trigger is not about apportioning blame. Its 
focus is on problem solving the case, utilising the expertise of partner 
agencies, to identify a resolution roadmap. 

To activate the Community Trigger, the victim must meet a threshold.  
The threshold test is detailed at section 5 of this document. 

The Community Trigger confers responsibilities on relevant bodies 
including the local authority, police, and registered providers of 
housing to manage and participate in the community trigger process.  
Further information can be found in the statutory guidance for frontline 
professionals (ASB Statutory Guidance). 

2.       Anti-Social Behaviour Defined 

For the purposes of the Community Trigger, the anti-social behaviour 
must be serious and persistent in nature and this behaviour is defined 
as: -  

 

 Conduct that has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm, 
or distress to any person. 

 Conduct capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in 
relation to that person’s occupation of residential premises1.  
 
 

3. Purpose   

“To give victims and communities the right to request a review of their 
case where a local threshold is met, and to bring agencies together to 

                                                           
1 Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act (2014) 

Page 35

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/956143/ASB_Statutory_Guidance.pdf


                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

take a joined up, problem-solving approach to find a solution for the 
victim.2 

 

 

  

4. Principles   

The Community Trigger is only available to victims of serious and 
persistent anti-social behaviour where they feel no effective action has 
been taken to resolve their case. It is not an alternative complaints 
procedure and will not review concerns about service provision.  
Service complaints should be directed to the appropriate agency who 
will then follow their complaints procedure. 
 

Hart Community Safety, on behalf of Hart District Council, is the 
administrator of the community trigger in this area. Relevant bodies 
and responsible authorities are required to take responsibility for the 
community trigger process also (for a full list of relevant bodies and 
responsible authorities please refer to section 6 of this document).  

                                                           
2 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 

Page 36



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

This Community Trigger Policy is conversant with the 
Statutory Guidance for Frontline Professionals, and future amendments, 
as outlined in “Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: 
Anti-Social Behaviour Powers (Home Office)”.  

5.       Qualifying Complaints and Thresholds   

           To activate the Community Trigger a victim must meet a threshold 
test.  This is:  

 The victim has reported three separate incidents (Qualifying 
Complaints) to either the council, police, or registered provider 
of housing within the preceding 6-month period and feel no 
effective action has been taken to resolve the ASB. 

 
OR 
   

  The victim has reported one hate incident or crime motivated by 
hate (due to race, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or 
transgender identity) in the last six months and no effective 
action has been taken to resolve the matter.  

 
OR 
   

  The Community Safety Manager or the District Police Inspector 
decides that a Community Trigger Review is necessary to 
safeguard a vulnerable victim of anti-social behaviour 3.   

 

An incident must be a ‘Qualifying Complaint’.   

 

A Qualifying Complaint is an incident that has been reported to either 
the council, police, or registered provider of housing within 30 days of it 
taking place. 

 

A single incident which is reported to more than one agency only 
constitutes as one Qualifying Complaint. 

                                                           
3 Appropriate seniority may include the ASB Team manager (or above), a police officer of the rank of 
Inspector (or above) or a similar senior officer within another responsible authority. 

Page 37



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

When considering a Community Trigger activation request, the 
administering authority must have due regard for:  
 

   the persistence of the anti-social behaviour 

  the harm or potential harm caused by the anti-social 
behaviour 

  the adequacy of response to the anti-social behaviour 

Regardless of the previous actions taken in the case, if the anti-social 
behaviour persists, a community trigger activation request should be 
accepted to determine what new or alternative actions are more likely 
to be effective to resolve it.   

6.        Relevant Bodies and Responsible Authorities   

The Relevant Bodies and Responsible Authorities are outlined in the 
statutory guidance as:   

 Local Authorities   

 Police  

 Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG) in England and 
Local Health Boards in Wales.   

       Registered providers of social housing   

In the local context of this policy, the relevant bodies and responsible 
authorities are:   

                           Hart District Council Community Safety (HDCCS)   

     Hampshire Constabulary (HC)   

     The appropriate Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
dependent upon location 

 Registered providers of social housing who 
provide accommodation in Hart District 

The Community Trigger case review must include a representative(s) 
from at least 3 of the agencies listed above but should also include 
representatives from other agencies relevant to the case. This could 
include the fire and rescue service, mental health, and drug and 
alcohol support agencies.  

Page 38



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

 

   

7.      Information Sharing   

For the Community Trigger process to be effective, relevant information 
must be shared across relevant bodies and partner agencies under the 
following legislation;  

 

 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
requires relevant bodies to share information pertinent to a 
community trigger activation and review. (please refer to 
schedule 4, para 6(2)) 

 
Where a request is made to an agency which does not exercise 
public functions, that agency may comply with the request 
subject to para 7(4) Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014.   

 

Paragraph 7 (4) of Schedule 4 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 provides the disclosure of information is 
not required  where it relates to non-exempt personal data 
which would be a breach of Data Protection legislation, a 
breach of any obligation of confidence owed by the person 
making the disclosure, or which is prohibited by parts 1 to 7 of 
Chapter 1 of Part 9 of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2016. 

 

 Schedule 2 5(b) to the Data Protection Act 1998 

 

 Section 115 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

8.        Who can raise a Community Trigger?   

     A victim can be an individual person, business, or community 
group.   
 

  A third party can make an application for a Community 
Trigger on behalf of a victim, with their consent. This can 

Page 39



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

include a friend, relative, carer, councillor, Member 
of Parliament, or another professional person. We will 
still need to contact the victim to establish the facts and may 
need to confirm this consent.   

 
 The Community Safety Manager or the District Police 

Inspector decides that a Community Trigger Review is 
necessary to safeguard a vulnerable victim of anti-social 
behaviour (please refer to section 5). 
 

9.        Who is not suitable for the Community Trigger?   

 A person who wishes to remain anonymous in the Community 
Trigger application as the applicant is required to engage in a 
two-way process and the impact of the persistent ASB is not 
possible to ascertain with anonymity.4 

  A person who wants a review of a Crown Prosecution Service 
(CPS) decision in relation to the prosecution or non-prosecution 
of a criminal offence. 

 A person who is dissatisfied with a decision made by a civil or 
criminal court. 

 A person whose complaint is about service provision only. 

10.          How to raise a Community Trigger in Hart District  

    Hart Community Safety administers and coordinates the Community 
Trigger in the Hart District area.  It does not matter which agency a 
victim has reported incidents to, Hart Community Safety will obtain 
the details of incidents relevant to the Community Trigger 
application. 

                      A victim can activate the community trigger by any of the following 
methods:  

 Contacting HC via 101 or online: 
https://www.hampshire.police.uk/ro/report/ 

                                                           
4 Local Authorities are required to publish number of Community Trigger requests received, accepted or 
declined annually but the specific details of a Community Trigger will not be published so an applicant’s 
details would remain confidential between the agencies involved. 

Page 40

https://www.hampshire.police.uk/ro/report/


                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

 HDC online ASB Reporting Form: 
https://www.hart.gov.uk/anti-social-behaviour-reporting-form  

 Email to: communitysafety@hart.gov.uk 

 By phone: 07816 109682 / 07816 109687 

 In writing to:  
Community Safety Manager 
Hart District Council Civic Offices 
Harlington Way 
Fleet GU51 4AE 

 

11.          The Community Trigger Activation Request Procedure         

                Upon receipt of an activation request, the Community Safety Officer 
will acknowledge receipt of the activation request within 5 working 
days from the date of the trigger application.  

                The Community Safety Manager will confirm if the threshold is met. 
Good conscience and professional judgement should be exercised 
to allow the community trigger to progress, even when the threshold 
is not met, where there are concerns about risk and vulnerability. 
Where the threshold is not met, a letter informing the applicant of the 
reasons why, should be sent within 5 working days from the date of 
that decision. The letter should include details of raising a service 
complaint against a particular agency if the request is deemed to be 
a service complaint rather than a Community Trigger request. 

                 Where the Community Trigger activation is accepted, the 
Community Safety Manager will normally be the SPOC (specific 
point of contact) to manage the Community Trigger process.  

                The Community Safety Officer will provide an outline of the next 
steps of the community trigger process, contact details for the SPOC 
and associated timescales within 5 working days from the date the 
community trigger activation is accepted. The letter will advise the 
victim of support and advocacy agencies available to them and how 
they can be referred. The letter should also detail how the victim’s 
voice will be heard at the community trigger review - either 
attendance at the start of the community trigger or through a written 
victim impact statement. 

Page 41

https://www.hart.gov.uk/anti-social-behaviour-reporting-form


                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

The SPOC will contact the victim within 5 working days and 
complete a Community Trigger Contact Form (CTCF).   

                Where the victim cannot be reached initially, the designated SPOC 
should make reasonable efforts to contact them (letter, phone, 
email, visit etc). Where contact cannot be made, the trigger will be 
listed as withdrawn and closed and confirmation of this sent by letter 
to the victim within 5 working days.  

                Where contact with the victim is made, ideally by phone, the SPOC 
will complete a CTCF to gather information about the incidents of 
anti-social behaviour and agency involvement in the case. A harm 
centred anti-social behaviour risk assessment will be completed and 
a discussion/referral to support services. 

                On completion of the CTCF, the SPOC will complete a Community 
Trigger Partner Agency Response form. The form will require 
identified partners and responsible agencies to provide information 
on the reports they have received and details of any actions taken. 
The agency should be informed of the timeframe to return the 
information within 10 working days. 

                Other agencies, relevant to the case, such as mental health or drug 
and alcohol services should also be engaged with citing the existing 
information sharing agreements, memorandum of understanding, 
information sharing permitted by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, 
Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2014 and Data Protection Act/GDPR 
2018. 

 The Community Safety Officer will contact agency representatives to 
arrange the date and time of the community trigger review. This will 
include an independent chair and minute taker. As a minimum, the 
panel must include representatives from:   

  

 Hart Community Safety – Community Safety Manager 

 HC District Police Inspector   

 Social Housing Provider (relevant management level)   

 CCG (relevant management level) 

 

Any recommendations or appropriate actions identified during the 
initial review process, where an immediate risk of physical or 

Page 42



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

mental harm is present, should be actioned and should not be 
unduly delayed until the meeting of the panel. Any interim 
actions taken should be communicated to the SPOC or Community 
Safety Officer.   

 

The Community Trigger review must be convened with 
consideration of the information in the Chair’s pack and Appendix 1 
(informal and formal enforcement list) and Terms of Reference. 

  After the Community Trigger review, the SPOC will inform the victim 
of the outcome of the review, ideally by phone call but then 
formalised in writing within 5 working days. The victim should be 
informed about the actions agreed, except those actions which 
identify the perpetrators protected personal and sensitive data. 

Minutes of the community trigger review, and the action plan must 
be circulated to all panel members by SPOC within 5 working days. 

  All panel members who have actions to complete must endeavour to 
do so within the timeframe allocated. Panel members must inform 
the SPOC when actions have been completed or to explain why an 
action is delayed.  

  Where the circumstances of the case significantly change, the 
SPOC can request panel members conduct a further review of the 
case. 

12           Appeals   

  The Appeals process should be accessed through the Office of the 
Police & Crime Commissioner (OPCC).        

 

13 MONITORING OF ACTION PLANS 
 
It is vital to the spirit of the process that the agreed actions are 
completed in the timeframe set out. It is the responsibility of the 
agency’s representative to complete their required actions and inform 
the SPOC when each action is completed. 
 

Page 43



                                                                Appendix A 
 

 

Where an action is not completed within the agreed timeframe the 
SPOC will contact the person assigned the action. If the action 
remains outstanding for more than 3 weeks the SPOC will escalate 
this to the assigned person’s direct line manager. Outstanding 
actions that remain incomplete for more than 2 months will be 
escalated to the Head of Service and where the immediate line 
manager is the Head of Service it will be escalated to the Chief 
Executive.  
 

  An action is not considered complete until the SPOC is informed. If it 
is no longer viable, or if the action is no longer necessary because 
another course of action has resolved the case, then it is the 
responsibility of the person assigned the action to inform the SPOC. 
That person should also advise what the outcome was so that 
partners can agree further actions to be completed or whether to re-
refer the case for discussion.  

 

14 ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS 
 
Where further requests for activation of the Community Trigger are 
received following a decision, these will be considered on their merit 
and may be allowed where there is a material change in the 
circumstances of the case. 
 
Where multiple requests for activation of the Community Trigger are 
received without good cause, Hart Community Safety may refer to 
Hart District Council Policy covering unreasonably persistent 
complainants. 

Page 44



 

CABINET 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 5th August, 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: REVISED SAFEGUARDING POLICY & 

PROCEDURE AND MODERN SLAVERY 
TRANSPARENCY STATEMENT  

  
Report of:  Head of Community 

 
  
Cabinet Portfolio:  Community 
  
Key Decision No 
  
  
Confidentiality Non Exempt 
  

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 

The Safeguarding Policy & Procedure was last updated in 2018 and is due 
for revision and update this year to include some additional information 
around Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE) and a new procedure for submitting 
referrals directly to Children’s or Adult’s Services, as appropriate. The 
Modern Slavery Transparency Statement aims to show the council’s 
commitment to ensuring there is no Modern Slavery in the council’s supply 
chains. 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the revised 
Safeguarding Policy & Procedure and Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement papers drawn up so they can be adopted and implemented.   

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the adoption of the revised 

Safeguarding Policy & Procedure and Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement.  

  
3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

Local Authorities have a statutory duty to safeguard and promote the welfare 
of children and adults at risk. Hart Community Safety provide awareness 
training and knowledge of how to identify a safeguarding issue as well as how 
to signpost individuals or report a safeguarding concern biennially to meet 
this duty. The Safeguarding Policy underpins the principles of safeguarding 
and clearly states the procedure to follow for all Hart staff and Members to 
follow, should they need to raise a referral.  
 
Councils are uniquely placed to be at the forefront of the fight against 
Modern Slavery and can demonstrate awareness and ethical leadership by 
voluntarily completing a Modern Slavery Transparency Statement. The 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



 

purpose of the statement is to work towards implementing year-on-year 
improvements and evidence progress on how Hart is tackling the risks and 
incidence of Modern Slavery within its operations and supply chains.  

  
 

4 MAIN ISSUES 
  
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 

As safeguarding issues can sometimes shift and change, along with the 
introduction of potential new legislation which is designed to further protect 
children and adults at risk, it is important to ensure that our Safeguarding 
Policy & Procedure is reviewed and updated to ensure that it is current and 
effective.  
 
Adoption of a Modern Slavery Transparency Statement provides a baseline in 
the way the council operations and supply chains operate and ensures that 
scrutiny to uphold the fight against Modern Slavery will be reviewed by the 
Council annually. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had a useful debate about the 
Safeguarding Policy & Procedure and asked for an additional appendix to be 
considered in a second draft to clarify around safeguarding in partnership.  
The paper has been updated to reflect this request. There was a further 
suggestion to produce a Quick Guide to Safeguarding reference sheet which 
will be created and circulated to staff and elected members by end of 
September 2021. There were no changes requested to the proposed Modern 
Slavery Transparency Statement. 

  
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
  
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 

No change to the Safeguarding Policy & Procedure was considered and 
rejected in favour of a more up-to-date and comprehensive policy with a more 
efficient and effective procedure for reporting concerns.  
 
Whilst local authorities are not required at present to publish a Modern 
Slavery Transparency Statement, it is considered best practice and may well 
become a requirement in future. 

  
6 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
  
6.1 Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or The Hart Vision 2040 
  
6.1.1 Whilst Safeguarding is not listed specifically in the Corporate Plan, it is one of 

the ‘golden threads’ that link our Vision, and Strategic Priorities to each 
Service Plan and our day-to-day working priorities: There is support for the 
most vulnerable  

  
6.2 Service Plan 

 

Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? No 

Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set 
aside for this proposal?  

Yes 

  

Page 46



 

  
7 Legal and Constitutional Issues 
  
7.1 No direct legal or constitutional issues arising from the recommendations. 
  
8 Financial and Resource Implications 
  
8.1 No direct financial or resource impacts arising from the recommendations. 
  
9 Risk Management 
  
9.1 Risks around safeguarding are in not fulfilling our duty to report safeguarding 

concerns and being subject to reviews following safeguarding failures where 
the council’s action or inaction will be scrutinised. Keeping our Safeguarding 
Policy & Procedure up to date and having in place a Modern Slavery 
Transparency Statement illustrates the positive action we are taking to 
ensure that we consider safeguarding across all our corporate and 
operational practices. 

  
  
10 EQUALITIES 
  

10.1 The principals of Safeguarding ensure that this revised Safeguarding Policy & 
Procedure and the Modern Slavery give due regard to the Council’s duty to 
promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
promote good relations between people who share protected characteristics 
under the Equalities Act and those who do not.  
 

  
11 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
  
11.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 
  
12 ACTION 
  
12.1 Cabinet is asked to approve the adoption of the revised Safeguarding Policy 

& Procedure which will be circulated to all staff and elected members and 
published on Sharepoint for reference. This Policy and Procedure will be 
reviewed again in 2024.  
 
Cabinet is asked to approve the Modern Slavery Transparency Statement will 
be published on the council’s website and further published at: Modern 
slavery statement registry - GOV.UK (modern-slavery-statement-
registry.service.gov.uk). 

 
 
Contact Details: Kirsty Jenkins – Head of Community Services 
   Kirsty.jenkins@hart.gov.uk 
  

Page 47

https://modern-slavery-statement-registry.service.gov.uk/
https://modern-slavery-statement-registry.service.gov.uk/
https://modern-slavery-statement-registry.service.gov.uk/
mailto:Kirsty.jenkins@hart.gov.uk


 

 
Appendices  
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Revised Safeguarding Policy & Procedure        

B 
Modern Slavery Transparency Statement 

       

 

Page 48



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hart District Council 

 

 

Safeguarding Policy 

& Reporting Procedure 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Owner: Community Safety Manager  

Version: 1.3 – Revised July 2021 

Page 49



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Contents   
  

 

1. Policy Statement 

2. Information Sharing 

3. Scope 

4. Translating Policy into Action 

5. Appendices 

 

Appendices  
 

1. Safeguarding Procedures 

2. Safeguarding Lead Officer Contacts 

3. Safeguarding in Partnership 

4. Good Practice Guidelines 

5. Referral Process 

6. Glossary 

7. Legislation and Guidance 

8. Specific Guidance for Councillors 
 

 

Page 50



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

1  Policy Statement  
 

Hart District Council is committed to working in partnership with others to safeguard 

children and vulnerable adults from all forms of abuse, neglect or exploitation. The council 

will raise awareness of safeguarding issues to ensure that the needs and interests of children, 

young people and adults at risk are incumbent in decision making processes and through 

service provision.  

This policy aims to ensure that an overarching approach to safeguarding is embedded within 

all council services and that staff, elected Members, those delivering contracts on behalf of 

the council and volunteers understand their role and responsibilities in supporting all 

residents to live a life free from abuse, exploitation and intimidation.  

Hart District Council will create an environment where staff, elected Members, those 

delivering contracts on behalf of the council and volunteers are adequately trained and 

encouraged to think of safeguarding as being their responsibility, understanding the need for 

them to play a full and active part in the delivery of the council’s response. It will create an 

organisational culture where the reporting of abuse and exploitation is encouraged, and 

everyone feels supported to do so.  

The council believes that all individuals, regardless of age, disability, gender and gender re-

assignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief, 

sex or sexual orientation, should have the greatest possible control over their lives. They 

should be able to make informed decisions or be supported to make these decisions if 

unable to do so themselves, without fear of harm or abuse from others.  

The council will ensure that it complies with all relevant safeguarding legislation.  

 

The senior responsible officer for safeguarding is the Head of Community Services. On a 

day-to-day basis, the main point of contact for raising safeguarding issues is the Designated 

Safeguarding Lead – the Community Safety Manager. Across all services, at least one   

Safeguarding Champion has been identified – these are people who will give receive further 

in-depth training and will provide advice and support to other staff or elected members on 

safeguarding issues.  All contact details are provided in Appendix 2 on page 15. 

 

2  Information sharing  

To keep children and vulnerable people safe from harm, professionals will share relevant 

information across geographical and professional boundaries as required.  

When there is a reasonable cause to believe that a child, young person or adult with care 

and support needs, may be suffering or may be at risk of suffering harm, consideration will 

always be given to referring these concerns to the relevant authorities.  

Information about children, young people, families and adults at risk will be shared 

appropriately, and always in accordance with the council’s Information Management and 

Data Sharing Policy and the Hampshire Information Sharing Framework to which the council 

Page 51



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

are signatories, facilitating effective data sharing across Hampshire in order to enable 

organisations to respond to quickly to customers’ needs. 

Information will also be shared in accordance with the council’s duty to supply information 

to the local Safeguarding Adults and Safeguarding Children Boards upon request, under the 

Care Act 2014 and the Children Acts 1989 and 2004 legislation, accordingly. 

Information sharing will however be - necessary, proportionate, relevant, accurate, timely 

and secure. Clear records and reasons for decisions will be recorded. 

 3  Scope  

The safeguarding themes considered within this policy are outlined below: 

 

3.1 Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people 
This encompasses the protection and welfare of children under the age of 18 (including 

unborn babies). It also incorporates the additional aims of preventing the impairment of 

children’s health and development; ensuring they grow up in circumstances consistent with 

the provision of safe and effective care, providing optimum life chances. 

All staff, elected Members, those delivering contracts on behalf of the council and volunteers 

who come into contact with children, who work with adults who are parents, or who gain 

knowledge about children through working with adults, will be trained to recognise and 

know how to act upon evidence that a child’s (or unborn baby’s) health or development is 

being or may be impaired, especially when they are suffering or at risk of suffering significant 

harm.  

 

3.2 Child sexual exploitation (CSE) and child criminal exploitation (CCE) 

CSE and CCE is illegal activity by people who have some form of power and control over 

children and use it to sexually abuse them/force them into criminal behaviour. It involves 

forcing or enticing a child (under the age of 18) to take part in sexual/criminal activities 

whether or not the child is aware of what is happening, including exploitative situations, 

contexts and relationships where children (or a third person or persons) receive 

‘something' (e.g. food, accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money) as a 

result of performing, and/or others performing on them, sexual activities. CSE and CCE can 

be a form of organised or complex abuse, involving a number of abusers and/or a number of 

children. 

CSE and CCE can occur through use of technology without the child's immediate 

recognition, for example the persuasion to post sexual images on the internet/mobile 

phones with no immediate payment or gain. In all cases those exploiting the child/young 

person have power over them by virtue of their age, gender, intellect, physical strength 

and/or economic or other resources  

 

 

 

 

Page 52



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

3.3 Safeguarding adults 

The purpose of adult safeguarding is to prevent harm and reduce the risk of abuse or 

neglect to adults with care and support needs. The statutory framework introduced under 

the Care Act applies to any person aged 18 or above who:  

 Has needs for care and support (regardless of the level of need and whether or not 

these needs are being met),  

 Is experiencing, or is at risk of abuse or neglect, and 

 As a result of those needs, is unable to protect themselves against the abuse or 

neglect or the risk of it.  

Adults with care and support needs should be supported in maintaining control over their 

lives and to make informed choices without coercion. Ill-treatment and wilful neglect of a 

person who lacks capacity is a criminal offence under the Mental Capacity Act 2005.  

Appendix 6 on page 19 contains a glossary of the main types of abuse. 

 

3.4 Domestic abuse 

Domestic abuse is defined as any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive or 

threatening behaviour, violence or abuse (including financial abuse) between those aged 16 

or over who are or have been intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or 

sexuality. 

3.5 Honour based abuse, including female genital mutilation and forced 

marriage 

Honour Based Abuse or Violence (HBA or HBV) is violence and abuse in the name of 

honour, covering a variety of behaviours (including crimes), mainly but not exclusively 

against females, where the person is being punished by their family and/or community for a 

perceived transgression against the ‘honour’ of the family or community, or is required to 

undergo certain activities or procedures in ‘honour’ of the family. 

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) is a collective term for illegal procedures which include the 

removal of part/all external female genitalia for cultural or other nontherapeutic reasons. 

The practice is not required by any religion. It is painful, medically unnecessary and has 

serious health consequences at the time it is carried out and in later life. The procedure is 

typically performed on girls of any age, but is also performed on new born girls and on 

young women before marriage/pregnancy. A number of girls die as a direct result of the 

procedure, from blood loss or infection  

A Forced Marriage (FM) “is a marriage conducted without the valid consent of both parties, 

where duress is a factor” (’A Choice by Right’ HM Government 2000).  

3.6 Prevent 

As a national counter-terrorist strategy Prevent aims to stop people becoming involved in 

terrorist activity or supporting terrorism by working with individuals and communities to 

address issues before they become a criminal matter, and to stop people moving from 

extremism into terrorist-related activity.  

Page 53



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Prevent is a strand of the Government anti-terrorism strategy led by the Home Office and 

focuses on working with individuals and communities who may be vulnerable to the threat 

of violent extremism and terrorism. Supporting vulnerable individuals and reducing the 

threat from violent extremism in local communities is priority for statutory partners and 

their partners.  

3.7 Modern slavery and human trafficking 

Modern Slavery (and Human Trafficking) involves the recruitment, transportation, transfer, 

harbouring or receipt of people who, with the threat or use of force, coercion, abduction, 

abuse of power or deception are exploited for the purposes of prostitution, forced labour, 

slavery or other similar practices. Victims are trafficked all over the world, including in and 

around the UK, and even throughout the district.  

3.8 E-safety  

Children and adults with care and support needs can be easy targets for online grooming 

with a view to exploiting them, sometimes even without their knowledge. The council takes 

very seriously the potential for online abuse and exploitation and works with partner 

agencies to raise awareness of e-safety within its workforce and the community by training 

staff to understand and recognise the signs and symptoms and report concerns to the 

appropriate agencies.  

4. Translating policy into action 

4.1 Training 

The council will ensure all staff, elected Members, those delivering contracts on behalf of the 

council and volunteers have a basic understanding of safeguarding and will biennially train 

staff and members to understand and recognise the various types of abuse and how to 

report such cases to the appropriate agencies.  

4.2 Partnership working 

Whilst the council’s responsibility and duty is to ensure that all disclosures and observations 

of a safeguarding nature are shared and reported appropriately by all council staff and 

elected members, the council will from time to time assist and advise other agencies in 

identifying a safeguarding concern as part of their existing partnership working and may 

submit further safeguarding concerns as a result in order to prevent the abuse of children 

and adults at risk in the district in all its forms.  A list of some of those agencies is 

provided in Appendix 3 on page 16. 

4.3 Safeguarding bodies 

Hampshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (HSCP) and Hampshire Safeguarding Adults 
Board (HSAB) are the key statutory bodies overseeing multi-agency safeguarding 

arrangements across Hampshire (excluding Portsmouth, Southampton and the Isle of 

Wight). These bodies are collectively responsible for strategic oversight of local safeguarding 

arrangements, guided by the principle that safeguarding is everybody’s responsibility. 

Page 54



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 4.4 Roles and responsibilities 

Staff and Elected Members must ensure they familiarise and comply with the council’s 

Safeguarding Policy and associated procedural documents. They must participate in relevant 

training to recognise the varying forms of abuse and report any concerns, incidents or 

allegations in line with the procedures appended to this document.   

It is the responsibility of staff and Elected Members to consider safeguarding implications in 

their decision-making processes, including the procurement of services.  

All external organisations, including voluntary groups and contractors providing services to 

and on behalf of the council are required to comply with the council’s Safeguarding Policy. 

Where appropriate they should have their own Safeguarding Policy and procedures in place, 

copies of which should be provided to the Council for reference. 

Whilst safeguarding is the responsibility of all staff, elected Members, those delivering 

contracts on behalf of the council and volunteers, there are a number of safeguarding roles 

within the Council with specific responsibilities briefly set out below:  

Role Responsibilities 

Hart staff Attend and engage in biennial safeguarding training, be 

familiar with the policy and procedure and apply vigilance 

for safeguarding concerns in all day-today activities. 

Keep appropriate notes, seek support from a Safeguarding 

Champion and submit safeguarding referrals when 

appropriate. 

Members Scrutinise and approve the council’s safeguarding policy 

and procedure. 

Attend and engage in biennial safeguarding training and 

submit safeguarding referrals when concerns are identified.  

Safeguarding Champions Engage in additional safeguarding training provided by the 

Community Safety Team to ensure a high level of relevant 

and current knowledge is maintained.  

Provide advice, support and guidance to staff, Members, 

volunteers and contractors on safeguarding issues or 

concerns including support for staff and Members to 

submit referrals without delay. 

Community Safety Team Keep up to date with key developments and legislation by 

attending training and key county-wide meetings. 

Provide biennial safeguarding training to all staff and 

Members. 

Provide more in-depth safeguarding training to 

Safeguarding Champions. 

Page 55



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Keep records of safeguarding referrals submitted. 

Designated Safeguarding 

Lead (DSL) – Community 

Safety Manager 

Development of policy and strategy, issuing operational 

guidance, promoting good practice and making policy 

recommendations to corporate management. 

Co-ordinate and design safeguarding training for all staff, 

Members and enhanced training for Safeguarding 

Champions. 

Attend county wide DSL group for sharing of best practice 

and learning to share on. 

Senior Responsible Officer – 
Head of Community 

Services 

Raise the profile, support the policy and promote the 
development of services to ensure the protection of 

children and adults at risk within the district. 

Please see Appendix 2 on page 15 for contact details of the role holders. 

4.5 Outcomes and priorities 

The anticipated outcomes of this policy are: 

 Demonstration of commitment at the most senior level, to safeguarding in this 

Council and district 

 As far as is within the council’s control, influence and knowledge, to ensure that 

children and adults at risk are protected against abuse, neglect and/or exploitation 

 To embed the council’s approach and commitment to the safeguarding agenda 

 To have a clear line of accountability within the council for safeguarding 

 To be fully compliant with all relevant legislation as laid out in Appendix 7 on page 

22 

 To ensure that all staff and Elected Members are fully trained and aware of their 

responsibilities and the correct procedures to follow with regards to Safeguarding 

  

Page 56



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 1 – Safeguarding Procedures 

The Safeguarding Policy is supported by an operational set of procedures which provide 

information on what to do when a safeguarding issue is identified. It is aimed at setting clear 

guidelines over what to do when a safeguarding issue is identified.  

1.  Reporting safeguarding concerns 

If you have a concern that an individual is at risk of immediate harm or danger, then you 

should dial 999 and report your concerns directly to the police. 

 

If you have a concern that an individual may be a victim of abuse of any kind and would like 

to discuss your concerns in more detail, then you can approach one of the Safeguarding 

Champions.  They will be able to offer you guidance and support in raising your concern.  

Their contact details are included in Appendix 2 on page 15. 

 

If a safeguarding referral needs to be made, then you should complete the relevant online 

form as follows, dependent upon whether the referral is for a child or an adult or, if you do 

not have specific details, but want to share intelligence with the Police around a suspected 

situation: 

 

Inter-agency referral to Children's Services - Section 1 - Hampshire County Council 
(hants.gov.uk) 
 

Make a professional referral | Health and social care | Hampshire County Council 
(hants.gov.uk) 
 

Community Partnership Information Sharing Form – Safe4Me 
 

Aim to send the referral form/CPI within 24 hours of you identifying the concern 

and advise submission of your concern to communitysafety@hart.gov.uk 

 

In the event of a concern being raised out of normal office hours, contact can be made 

directly with Children or Adult Services on 0300 555 1373. This must be followed up with a 

completed referral being submitted within 48 hours. 

 

The Designated Safeguarding Lead will keep a record of submissions made.  These records 

will be kept safely and securely and information will not otherwise be shared unless it 

relates to an ongoing case and it is appropriate to share this information in the interests of 

safeguarding all (including staff) concerned.   

 
Allegations of abuse may be subject to criminal proceedings so it is vital that once your 

concern has been escalated, you do not try to intervene further, unless as part of an 

identified multiagency approach, as this could hamper any police investigation. 

 

A social worker from Children or Adult Services will assess the information to determine  

whether a formal investigation should commence, and may contact you directly for  

Page 57

https://forms.hants.gov.uk/en/AchieveForms/?form_uri=sandbox-publish://AF-Process-7e6115a7-b0ba-484d-991f-084c1248ac72/AF-Stage-52cf8e73-0daf-47d4-bb55-0fdad856d3e6/definition.json&redirectlink=/en&cancelRedirectLink=/en
https://forms.hants.gov.uk/en/AchieveForms/?form_uri=sandbox-publish://AF-Process-7e6115a7-b0ba-484d-991f-084c1248ac72/AF-Stage-52cf8e73-0daf-47d4-bb55-0fdad856d3e6/definition.json&redirectlink=/en&cancelRedirectLink=/en
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/adultsocialcare/contact/professional-referral
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/adultsocialcare/contact/professional-referral
https://www.safe4me.co.uk/portfolio/sharing-information/


  APPENDIX A 

 
 

further information. You may also be contacted by the Police. You should keep notes of any 

further communications/actions and provide these to the Designated Safeguarding Lead to 

keep a record of. 

 

2. Disclosure 

This is when a child or vulnerable adult (or someone associated with them), tells you 

something that raises a concern that abuse is or may have happened. Disclosure can be 

defined as either:  

  

 Full disclosure: where an individual gives you the whole story of what is happening to 

them including the name of the abuser/s.  

 Partial disclosure: where an individual tells you only that “something‟ is happening to 

them.  

 

A disclosure can be deliberate or made as part of a normal conversation. Either way it must 

be reported.  

 

During a disclosure by a victim of abuse you should:  

 stay calm and listen patiently  

 reassure the person they are doing the right thing by telling you 

 ask clarifying questions to ensure that your understanding is the same as the 

individual making the disclosure  

 make the individual affected aware of the need to pass on any information they 

tell you, and that ‘secrets’ cannot be kept  

 explain what you are going to do with the information, and who it will be shared 

with  

 try to ensure the disclosure area is kept confidential and that it is not possible 

for anyone else to hear  

 attempt to make a written note of what is being said as soon as possible (this 

note should be kept for use as potential evidence in subsequent legal 

proceedings).  
 

You should not:  

 ask leading questions, appear shocked, horrified, disgusted or angry.  

 press the individual for details (it is not your duty to undertake the investigation).  

 make comments or judgements other than to show concern.  

 promise to keep secrets or confront the abuser.  

 risk contaminating evidence.  

 

3. Reporting after disclosure 

Advise the Designated Safeguarding Lead immediately after the issue is identified, and: 

 

 record the full conversation about the disclosure or suspicion of abuse on the 

referral form  

Page 58



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 only language used by the individual should be used, and assumptions in your 

own words should not be made  

 follow the procedure for reporting a concern as described in Part 1. Reporting 

safeguarding concerns above. 

  

4. Safeguarding relating to children/young people  
 

These guidelines relate to working with one or two young people and should be followed 

for: work placements, work shadowing days and individual meetings with young people.  

Where a member of staff intends to work with a group of three or more young people the 

supervision and gender ratio is a matter of judgement for the officer concerned who must 

conduct a specific risk assessment in the context of the activity to be undertaken.  

 

At the Council Offices  

The council is generally open plan; therefore, risk to the individual/council is minimal, 

however:  

 No child/young person should be left alone in an enclosed room/office or be alone in 

an enclosed room with only one adult; two members of staff should be present.  

 1:1 meetings/discussions in an open plan office environment is acceptable.  

 DBS checks are not required for staff involved in office-based placements.  

 When service areas agree to take on a work placement and have concerns in 

relation to the putting either the young person/person or the organisation at risk 

then they should contact HR for advice. Advice will be given on a case-by-case basis.  

 

Meetings/visits away from the office  

 When leaving the offices for meetings or visits, young people will be accompanied by 

two adults at all times. Where possible one of these individuals must be the same 

gender as the young person (i.e. with a female student there must either be 2 female 

adults, or 1 female, 1 male adult but not two males; with a male student there must 

either be 2 male adults, or 1 female, 1 male adult but not two females).  

 One of the adults may be someone other than a member of staff; this person should 

be a ‘responsible’ adult known in their professional capacity to the member of staff, 

e.g. councillor, member of community organisation, teacher.  

 Approval must be obtained from the school/placement body for the young person to 

be taken off site during their placement. For placements arranged through HR, 

consent will have been obtained in advance as part of a risk assessment.  If the 

placement has been organised by the service area directly with a school, the Head of 

Service will be responsible for seeking/evidencing consent from the school. If a 

placement is agreed directly between a service area and young person, the Head of 

Service is responsible for seeking and evidencing consent from the young person’s 

legal guardian.  

 If going off site involves travelling in a car belonging to a member of staff, the car 

must be insured for the purpose of carrying passengers for business use.  

5. Where an allegation is made against a staff member 

Anyone who suspects that a member of the council’s staff or a councillor may be abusing a 

child or vulnerable adult must act on their suspicions immediately. This will not only protect 

vulnerable individuals but also colleagues from false accusations.  

Page 59



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

If you are a member of staff and have concerns about the behaviour or conduct of a 

member of staff, a councillor or other adult working on behalf of the council:  

 

 it will be treated in the strictest confidence 

 details must be recorded immediately 

 report your concerns to the Chief Executive  

 The Chief Executive will inform the Local Authority Designated Officer (the 

Community Safety Manager) without delay where the concern relates to an 

allegation against someone who works with children and young people 

 if it is deemed necessary to suspend an employee, procedures relating to the 

Disciplinary Policy will be followed 

 

If you do not work for the council and have concerns about the behaviour or conduct of a 

member of council staff, contact one of the council’s Heads of Service. 

 

The council’s Whistleblowing Policy also allows staff to raise serious concerns in strict  

confidence. This policy is intended to encourage staff to raise serious concerns within the 

council rather than ignoring a problem. It is available on the council’s website. 

 

6. What to do when an allegation is made against a councillor 

Anyone who suspects that a councillor may be abusing a child or vulnerable adult should 

immediately notify the Monitoring Officer for the Council. This is Daryl Phillips – 

daryl.phillips@hart.gov.uk  

 

7. Confidentiality, record keeping and complaints  
 

Confidentiality  

The right of a child or vulnerable adult to be protected from harm is paramount. While 

there are clear rules on confidentiality, if the needs of the individual affected outweigh the 

need for confidentiality, then the need of the vulnerable person takes precedence. However, 

where an allegation is made, and whilst it is being investigated, every effort should be made 

to ensure confidentiality is maintained for all concerned. If enquiries arise from the public 

(including parents) or any branch of the media, it is essential that all employees, councillors 

and volunteers are briefed so that they do not make any comments regarding the situation, 

unless authorised to do so.  

 

Record keeping  
Safeguarding records will be stored on UniForm within the ASB Module, a secure in-house 

database..  The case on UniForm will be locked down to ensure that only those who need 

to know have access and unless it is a live case it will be opened and closed once the 

safeguarding referral has been made.  If the need arises, the case will be reopened by the 

Designated Safeguarding Lead for additional information to be added or action taken. 

  

 

 

Page 60

mailto:daryl.phillips@hart.gov.uk


  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Complaints regarding the council’s approach/response to safeguarding issues  

When dealing with complaints, it is important to maintain an open culture. Staff, councillors, 

volunteers and others must feel able to express concerns about safeguarding issues and 

issues of poor practice when dealing with vulnerable people. An easy-to-follow complaints 

procedure for members of the public regarding staff is available.  

 

 

8. Recruitment and training  
 

Recruitment  

Through the council’s recruitment procedures anyone who works directly with children or 

vulnerable adults, or may come into regular contact with vulnerable individuals during the 

course of their work, must have:  

 

 a Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) check (formerly known as a Criminal 

Records Bureau (CRB) check).  

 their experience of working or contact with children or vulnerable adults fully 

explored, prior to appointment  

 two references obtained from people who have had experience of the applicant’s 

work with children or vulnerable adults (paid or voluntary)  

 training in recognising the signs of abuse, in reporting procedures, and in good 

working practice.  

 

Pre-recruitment checks will always be carried out. This includes conducting a risk 

assessment for all posts to determine whether or not the post has access to children or 

vulnerable adults (this will apply regardless of the employment status of the post i.e. 

permanent, temporary or casual). Job descriptions of staff that are subject to a DBS check 

will include reference to specific safeguarding responsibilities and where relevant, reference 

to the ‘early help’ agenda.  

 

Managing Work Experience  

All young people undertaking work experience with the council and council trainees are to 

be regarded as employees for the purposes of health and safety and they should receive all 

of the same protection we afford to our own employees.  

 

Training  

The council recognises that it has a commitment to ensure that all staff and Elected 

Members have a clear understanding of their roles and responsibilities when working with 

children or vulnerable adults. The training process will help them to:  

 

 be able to recognise the different signs of abuse, and what appropriate course of 

action should be taken in these circumstances 

 have an understanding of the potential risks to themselves, and ensure good practice 

is adhered to at all times 

 recognise signs of improper behaviour from others and take appropriate action 

 

All staff must undertake training, even if it is unlikely that they will come into contact with 

vulnerable groups. 

 

Page 61



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

9. Funding and grants  
 

Where organisations and groups that work with children or vulnerable adults apply to the 

council for grants, the granting of funds will be subject to a safeguarding policy being in place 

by the recipient organisation. Guidance to organisations or groups can be provided on 

adopting a safeguarding policy if needed. 

 

10. Hiring facilities to others  
 

Whilst Hart District Council owns a range of premises, the only one managed directly is the 

Civic Offices. These offices are primarily used for the provision of Council Services. 

 

Should any part of the premises be hired, any hirer who provides activities for children or 

vulnerable adults is required to adhere to current safeguarding legislation and guidance and 

the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015 duty must be observed to ensure that the 

premises are not being used by radical speakers or for the purposes of radicalisation. 

 

11. Third Party Obligations  
 

Contractors, sub-contractors and organisations (including voluntary sector) that are 

commissioned, funded by or working on behalf of the council, that are involved in areas 

where workers come into regular contact with children or vulnerable adults, must have 

safeguarding children and vulnerable adult policies in place that comply with the terms of 

this policy.  

 

These organisations must ensure that the correct DBS checks have been carried out for all 

relevant workers and provide staff with appropriate safeguarding training. All new contracts 

let by the council, which involve providing services for vulnerable individuals, will include 

appropriate provisions for complying with the principles of this policy.  

 

 

12. Photography and use of photographic equipment  
 

If you are organising an event or meeting and would like to take photographs or record a 

video of activities, please check with the Community Safety Manager that this is acceptable 

to do. 

 

Page 62



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 2 – Safeguarding Lead Officer Contacts 

 

Lead Their role Job Title Email address 

Senior Responsible 

Officer 

Oversee 

Safeguarding 

processes 

within Local 

Authority 

Head of 

Community 

Services 

Kirsty.Jenkins@hart.gov.uk 

Designated 

Safeguarding Lead  

Oversee 

safeguarding 

referrals 

Community Safety 

Manager 

Rachael.Wilkinson@hart.gov.uk 

 

Safeguarding 

Champions 

Additional 

people to go 

to for 

safeguarding 
advice 

Various Caroline.Anamoah@hart.gov.uk 

Emma.Foy@hart.gov.uk 

Juel.Mackrodt@hart.gov.uk 

Lucy.Rasell-White@hart.gov.uk 

Marcela.Roshan@hart.gov.uk 

Maxine.Lewis@hart.gov.uk 

Saffron.Nicholson@hart.gov.uk 

General enquiries 

or advice 

Any other 

queries 
pertaining to 

safeguarding 

matters and 

additional e-

mail address 

to copy in on 

referrals 

made 

 communitysafety@hart.gov.uk 

 

Page 63

mailto:Caroline.Anamoah@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Emma.Foy@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Juel.Mackrodt@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Lucy.Rasell-White@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Marcela.Roshan@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Maxine.Lewis@hart.gov.uk
mailto:Saffron.Nicholson@hart.gov.uk
mailto:communitysafety@hart.gov.uk


  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 3 – Safeguarding in Partnership 

 
Agencies that the council may work in partnership with to prevent the abuse of 

children and adults at risk in the district in all its forms include, but is not 

restricted to: 

 

Members of the wider Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 

Police 

Fire & Rescue 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 

Probation Services 

Adults Health & Social Care 

Children’s Health & Social Care 

Army 

 

And additionally, where appropriate:  

Social Landlords 

Volunteer/Charity Support Organisations 

Town & Parish Councils 

Resident groups 

 

   

Page 64



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 4 – Good Practice Guidelines 

 

‘Dos and Don’ts’  
 

The following ‘Do’s and Don’ts’ are designed to safeguard children and vulnerable adults and 

protect staff from situations where false allegations can be made. The lists are not exhaustive. 

Some specific posts and activities may need more detailed guidance. If you have any concerns 

about the appropriateness of any practice or action, contact the Designated Safeguarding Lead.  

 

In the course of their day-to-day work on behalf of the council, Hart District 

Council councillors, staff, managers, volunteers and anyone who is acting on behalf 

of the council will ...  
1.  be professional, use common sense, and maintain the highest standards of personal 

behaviour at all times  

2.  ensure all activities undertaken involving any risk to children or vulnerable adults are 

properly risk assessed and appropriate control measures recorded and implemented  

3.  avoid being the only adult in an enclosed room with a young person  

4.  treat all children and vulnerable adults with equal dignity and respect  

5.  where appropriate, be identifiable – wear a form of identification  

6.  respect the child/vulnerable adult’s right to privacy  

7.  maintain an appropriate distance and consider placing a physical barrier (e.g.) 

coat/handbag, between themselves and the child/vulnerable adult  

8.  keep the child’s needs first and the outcomes second  

9.  obtain written consent for the taking of photos for publicity purposes and when children 

are to participate in supervised activities and events without the presence of the parents 

or guardian  

10.  if physical contact is necessary for demonstrating skills etc., explain and discuss these 

actions with the person first  

In the course of their day-to-day work on behalf of the council, Hart District 

Council councillors, staff, managers, volunteers and anyone who is acting on behalf 

of the council will NOT...  
1.  have inappropriate physical / verbal contact with children and vulnerable adults  

2.  discriminate against a child or vulnerable adult on the grounds of their age, gender, 

disability, race, religious belief, sexual orientation, transgender status or any other 

protected characteristic  

3.  transport or offer to transport a child unless written consent has been given by their 

parent and or guardian  

4.  engage in physical intervention unless in emergency situations, where, if personnel did 

not intervene there would be a real or actual risk to themselves or others  

5.  be under the influence of drink, drugs or any illegal substance  

6.  allow bullying or the use of inappropriate language unchallenged  

7.  let allegations a child or vulnerable adults makes be ignored or go unrecorded  

8.  do things of a personal nature for a child or vulnerable adult that they can do themselves  

9.  enter a house when a child is alone or arrange to meet with a child outside of council 

work, unless you have full consent of the child’s parent/ guardian and your line manager  

 

  

Page 65



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 5 – Referral Process 
 

 
 

 

 

Always ensure the Designated Safeguarding Lead has been advised 

that a referral or CPI submission has been done, or if further 

information has been provided. 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 6 - Glossary 
 

Types and indicators of abuse 
 
Abuse is a form of maltreatment.  A child or vulnerable adult can be abused or neglected 

because they are being harmed or because no-one is preventing that harm from being 

caused.  Abuse is categorised but an individual who is being abused is likely to experience a 

number of these abuses, for example, a child who is being neglected is also a victim of 

emotional and physical abuse. 

 

The following definitions have been taken from a range of safeguarding guidance and 

legislation including Working Together to Safeguard Children 2015 and No Secrets 2015. 

 

Physical Abuse 

May involve causing pain, injury or impairment by behaviour such as: hitting, slapping, 

pushing, kicking, misuse of medication, restraint, inappropriate sanctions, shaking, throwing, 

poisoning, burning, scalding, malnutrition, dehydration or any other acts causing physical 

harm or illness. 

 

Emotional Abuse 

The persistent emotional maltreatment of a person, such as to cause severe ongoing 

adverse effects on a person’s emotional development and well being. This may involve 

threats of harm, controlling, intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse and isolation 

from supportive networks. 

 

Sexual Abuse 

Involves forcing/enticing a child or vulnerable adult to take part in sexual activities including; 

prostitution, rape, sexual harassment, subjection to pornography or witnessing sexual acts, 

indecent exposure, sexual assault or sexual acts to which consent has not been given or has 

been given under duress, sexual photography, inappropriate touching, sexual teasing or 

innuendo.  This abuse includes children who are victims of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) 

or are missing or being trafficked. 

 

Neglect 
Persistent failure to meet the basic, psychological and/or emotional needs of a child or 

vulnerable adult.  This abuse includes; ignoring medical or physical care needs, failing to 

provide access to appropriate health/social care, welfare benefits or educational services, 

withholding necessities of life such as medication, adequate nutrition and heating.  Neglect 

to a baby may occur in utero as a result of maternal alcohol or substance misuse. 

 

Domestic Abuse 

An incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening, degrading or violent 

behaviour, including sexual violence.  In the majority of cases this abuse is perpetrated by a 

partner or ex-partner but also by a family member or carer.   

 

Financial Abuse 

This abuse is specific to vulnerable adults and does not affect children.  The abuse includes, 

theft, fraud, pressure in connection with wills, property of inheritance or financial 

transactions, misuse or misappropriation of property, money, possessions or benefits. 

Page 67



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

Honour Based Violence 

Honour based violence is a violent crime or incident which may have been committed to 

protect or defend the honour of the family or community.  It is often linked to family 

members or acquaintances who mistakenly believe someone has brought shame to their 

family or community by doing something that is not in keeping with the traditional beliefs of 

their culture.  

 

Discriminatory Abuse 

This is abuse that affects protected characteristics under the Equalities Act 2010 and include 

any act aimed specifically at an individual’s; age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage or 

civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and/or sexual 

orientation.  This abuse includes; harassment, slurs or similar treatment classed as hate 

crime. 

 
Abuse of Disabled Children / Adults 

Disabled children and adults are at increased risk of abuse and neglect and this risk increases 

further with the severity of the disabilities as they may; have few social contacts/interactions, 

be receiving intimate care from several individual carers and/or have impaired capacity to 

protect themselves from abuse through challenge or communication. 

 

Forced Marriage 

A marriage in which one or both of the parties is married without his or her consent or 

against his or her will. 

 

Modern Slavery 

Modern slavery, ‘trafficking in persons’ and ‘human trafficking’ have been used as umbrella 

terms for the act of recruiting, harbouring, transporting, providing, or obtaining a person for 

compelled labour or commercial sex acts through the use of force, fraud or coercion. This 

abuse includes children who are victims of Child Criminal Exploitation (CCE) or are missing 

or being trafficked. 

 

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) 

FGM comprises all procedures that involve partial or total removal of the external female 

genitalia, or other injury to the female genital organs for nonmedical reasons.  FGM is a 

criminal offence in the UK and is an extremely harmful practice and a form of child abuse 

and violence against women and girls. 

 

Self-neglect, Self-harm or Attempted Suicide 

Self-neglect includes failing to care for one’s personal hygiene, health or surroundings and 

includes hoarding behaviours.  Deliberate self-harm is physically harmful behaviour without 

suicidal intent, resulting in non-fatal injury, it is, however, a common precursor to suicide.  

Attempted suicide is self-harm with intent to take life, resulting in non-fatal injury. 

 

Institutional / Organisational Abuse 
Institutional or organisational abuse is the mistreatment of people brought about by poor or 

inadequate care or support, or systematic poor practice that affects a whole setting.  It 

occurs when the individual’s wishes and needs are sacrificed for the smooth running of a 

group, service or organisation. 

 

Page 68



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

 

Injuries to non-mobile children 

Unexplained bruising is the commonest indicator of physical abuse in children, however, the 

significance of bruising is sometimes not recognised in those not yet crawling, cruising or 

walking independently.  NICE guidance states that bruising in any child not independently 

mobile should prompt suspicion of maltreatment. 

 

Doorstep, postal, telephone, cybercrime and scams 

These crimes are targeted at vulnerable adults and the elderly, particularly those who are 

socially isolated, have cognitive impairment or have been bereaved.  Elderly people are at 

risk of losing their savings and finding themselves living in poverty as a result.  The 

government decision to allow the elderly to draw directly from their pension pots will place 

a further strain on this vulnerability.  Whilst there is a lot of work being done in partnership 

to identify the scams and scammers, protect the elderly and vulnerable and prevent them 

from being drawn into these scenarios, it is imperative that we remain vigilant and alive to 

those within our communities who are, or could become victims.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 7 - Legislation and Guidance  
 

This policy has been based on current safeguarding legislation and guidance for children and 

vulnerable adults, including:  

 

 Domestic Abuse Act 2021 

 Working together to safeguard children – A guide to interagency working HM Gov., 

2015  

 Modern Slavery Act 2015 

 The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 

 Care Act 2014  

 Information Sharing Advice for practitioners, 2015  

 The Role of District Councils in Safeguarding Children and Young People, 2010  

 Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 

 National Framework of Standards – adult safeguarding, 2005  

 The Children Act 2004 (including provisions and guidance in 2005).  

 Every Child Matters Green Paper, 2003  

 ‘No Secrets’ guidance, 2000 (including the revision of this guidance in 2010)  

 The Protection of Children Act, 1999 

 

Other related legislation includes: the Data Protection Act 2018, the General Data 

Protection Regulations 2018, the Equality Act 2010 and the Freedom of Information Act 

2000. Further detail on safeguarding legislation can be found by accessing the relevant links 

on this website: http://www.isa.homeoffice.gov.uk/  

 

  

Page 70

https://cpdonline.co.uk/knowledge-base/safeguarding/legislation-and-policies-that-surround-safeguarding-vulnerable-adults/#safeguarding-vulnerable-groups-act-2006


  APPENDIX A 

 
 

Appendix 8 - Specific Guidance for Councillors  
 

When should a councillor comply with the council’s safeguarding policy?  

When acting as, or perceived to be acting as, a councillor.  

 

When is a councillor acting as, or perceived to be acting as, a councillor?  

It can be unclear as to when a councillor’s duties end and when their private life takes over. 

With regard to safeguarding children there would appear to be three possible situations:  

 

1  A councillor clearly acting in an official capacity, for example where a planned visit to 

a school or care home has been organised by officers and the councillor is attending 

in their official capacity. In this situation, councillors would be expected to follow the 

same policy and procedures as officers.  

2  A situation where the councillor could be perceived to be acting in an official 
capacity – this could be a situation where councillors are fact finding on their own 

without officers in attendance (for example where complaints of anti-social 

behaviour in a children’s play area have been made and a ward councillor goes out to 

see how bad the situation is). In this situation, the councillor may come into contact 

with children. Again, councillors would be expected to follow the same policy and 

procedures.  

3  Purely social contact with children (for example giving a lift to the children of a family 

friend) or vulnerable adults (for example visiting an older person who is a friend at a 

care home). There is no need to follow the council’s child protection policy and 

procedures.  
 

It is noted that councillors often get involved with, or take on, other roles in the 

community, for example school governor, helping at youth clubs, care homes etc. In these 

circumstances the councillor will have to comply with the policy of the relevant organisation 

(i.e. the school etc). 

  

Working with children and vulnerable adults 

 

In the unlikely event that a councillor needs to work frequently with children or vulnerable 

adults on behalf of the council then they would be required to have a DBS check and meet 

with the Community Safety Manager, to ensure that they are familiar with the council’s 

safeguarding policy and procedure.  

 

Councillors will receive additional guidance on their safeguarding responsibilities as part of 

the councillor induction process. 

Page 71



Appendix B 

 

Hart District Council – Modern Slavery Transparency Statement 
 
Introduction 
 
This statement sets out Hart District Council’s (‘the Council’) actions to understand 
all potential modern slavery risks related to its business and measures taken to 
ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its own business, or in its 
supply chains.  
 
The Council recognises its responsibility to notify the Secretary of State of suspected 
victims of human trafficking as introduced by Section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 
2015, as well as its general responsibility under safeguarding to take a strong 
approach to any allegations of modern slavery and human trafficking. 
 
The Council is committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking in its corporate 
activities and to ensuring that its supply chains are free from slavery and human 
trafficking. The Statement sets out practices already in place at the Council, and 
committed actions moving forward. 
 
What is modern slavery? 
 
Modern slavery encompasses human trafficking, slavery, servitude and forced labour 
and can include: 
 

 sexual exploitation; 

 labour exploitation; 

 forced criminality; 

 organ harvesting; 

 domestic servitude; 

 debt bondage. 
 
Anyone can become a victim of modern slavery, with particularly vulnerable groups 
including: 
 

 unaccompanied, internally displaced children; 

 children accompanied by an adult who is not their relative or legal 
guardian; 

 young girls and women; 

 former victims of modern slavery of trafficking; 

 homeless individuals. 
 
Partnerships 
 
The Council works in partnership with a wide number of agencies in order to combat 
modern slavery, including: 
 

 North Hampshire Community Safety Partnership 

Page 72



Appendix B 

 

 Hampshire Constabulary 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership 
 
The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership’s main objectives 
include: 
 

 To raise awareness of modern slavery 

 To combat modern slavery by working in partnership 

 To identify and support victims of modern slavery 

 To pursue perpetrators of modern slavery 
 
The full Partnership strategy is available on the website at 
www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/partnership. 
 
The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership provides guidance, 
training and best practice to partners across the County, ensuring all organisations 
are equipped to tackle this issue. 
 
At a local level, the Council’s Community Safety team works with Hampshire 
Constabulary to identify and manage any victims or perpetrators of modern slavery. 
Hart Community Safety team operate under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and 
the duty to prevent crime and disorder, which includes modern slavery and 
trafficking. Monthly meetings are held to track individuals of note as well as resulting 
actions: 
 

 for adults - the Hart & Rushmoor Vulnerabilities Operational Group (VOG) led 
by the Hart & Rushmoor Community Safety teams. 

 for children – Hart & Rushmoor Op MET (Missing Exploited Trafficked) 
meeting led by Children’s Services. 

 
Policies 
 
The Council reviews its policies and procedures on an ongoing basis to ensure they 
remain compliant and fit for purpose. The following policies and procedures are 
considered to be key in meeting the requirements of the Modern Slavery Act. 
 

 Safeguarding 
The Council is committed to safeguarding the welfare of children and 
vulnerable adults. The Council has a comprehensive Safeguarding Policy 
which all staff and councillors are expected to read and adhere to. The 
Council carries out Safeguarding training for all frontline staff biennially, has 
Safeguarding champions across departments and participates in multi-agency 
partnerships to protect and safeguard people. 
 

 Recruitment 
The Council vets all new employees ensuring they are able to confirm identity, 
qualifications and are eligible to work in the United Kingdom as well as 
following up references. The Council safeguards agency workers by ensuring 

Page 73

http://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/partnership


Appendix B 

 

agencies used are reputable and have appropriate policies in place to 
safeguard workers. 
 

 Pay 
The Council operates a job evaluation scheme to ensure employees are paid 
fairly and equitably, taking into account The Equality Act 2010 and the 
National Joint Council for Local Government Services. The Council’s pay and 
reward policy is based on fairness, affordability, consistency, flexibility, market 
rates and to encourage and reward achievement.  
 

 Employee Code of Conduct 
The Council’s Employee Code of Conduct makes clear to employees the 
actions and behaviours expected of them when representing the Council. The 
Employee Code of Conduct promotes a high standard of conduct based 
around honesty, accountability and respect to maintain public confidence in 
services provided, with any breaches thoroughly investigated. 
 

 Whistleblowing 
The Whistleblowing policy forms part of the council’s corporate governance 
arrangements to ensure that employees are confident in the reporting and 
investigation of malpractice including fraud, corruption, and unethical conduct. 
 

 Members Code of Conduct 
The Members Code of Conduct emphasises Members’ responsibilities with 
regard to dealing with residents and all members of the community in a fair 
manner, putting the public interest first. 
 

Supply Chains 
 
It is a priority for the Council to ensure ethical trading, responsible sourcing and 
prevention of modern slavery and human trafficking throughout its supply chains. 
 
The Council is committed to: 
 

 full transparency of its supply chain; 

 ensuring people who provide products and services used by the Council are 
treated fairly, and their fundamental human rights protected and respected; 

 ensuring new suppliers understand the Council’s requirements before 
commencing any work, and that existing suppliers comply with these 
requirements. 

 
The Council procures goods and services from various suppliers which is governed 
by the Procurement Strategy and related Terms and Conditions. 
 
The Council will carry out due diligence to ensure suppliers are aware of its 
expectation during any bid or tendering process, and again prior to new contracts 
being signed. The Council may request evidence of adequate Modern Slavery 
policies and procedures from any potential new suppliers, as well as existing ones. 
Prior to being engaged, all new suppliers will provide written confirmation of 
compliance with the Modern Slavery Act. 

Page 74



Appendix B 

 

 
Suppliers may be requested to agree to the Council’s Standard Safeguarding 
Contract Clauses. 
 
If a current supplier is found to meet all statutory requirements but has policies that 
are lacking or could be improved, we may look to work in collaboration with them to 
improve these, or alternatively suggest an appropriate agency who can assist. 
Should the Council have serious concerns around a supplier’s policies and the safety 
of those working for them, this should be immediately referred to the Councils Senior 
Management as well as the Contracts Manager and a suitable escalation process 
followed. 
 
Any violations or safety concerns will be reported to the appropriate authorities 
including: 
 

 Hampshire Constabulary - https://www.hampshire.police.uk/ 

 Hampshire County Council Children/Adults Services - 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth 

 The Home Office - https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/modern-slavery 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership - 
http://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/ 

 Banardos - https://www.barnardos.org.uk/ 

 Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority (GLAA) - 
https://www.gla.gov.uk/report-issues/ 

 
Training 
 
All frontline Council staff are required to attend biennial Safeguarding Training, and 
all staff have access to Safeguarding Champions within the organisation for advice 
and assistance at any time. All staff are also encouraged to familiarise themselves 
with the Safeguarding Policy. Policies and the list of Safeguarding Champions can 
be accessed via SharePoint under Community Safety/Safeguarding. 
 
Councillors are also encouraged to attend Safeguarding Training to assist them in 
carrying out their duties both within the Council, as well as when out working in the 
community for their constituents. 
 
Review 
 
This Transparency Statement was approved by the Cabinet of Hart District Council 
on TBC and will be reviewed annually by the Community Safety Manager. 
 
Reporting of concerns 
 
As a first responder, the Council will report all Modern Slavery concerns via the 
National Referral Mechanism for adults and to Children’s Services for children. 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/human-trafficking-victims-referral-and-
assessment-forms 

Page 75

https://www.hampshire.police.uk/
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/modern-slavery
http://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/
https://www.barnardos.org.uk/
https://www.gla.gov.uk/report-issues/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/human-trafficking-victims-referral-and-assessment-forms
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/human-trafficking-victims-referral-and-assessment-forms


Appendix B 

 

Contact Children's Services | Children and Families | Hampshire County Council 
(hants.gov.uk) 
 

Document Control 

Version Amended by Next update 

1.0 Rachael Wilkinson 2022 

   

 

Page 76

https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/childrenandfamilies/contacts
https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/childrenandfamilies/contacts


 

  

CABINET 
 
DATE OF MEETING: 5 AUGUST 2021 

  
TITLE OF REPORT: PARKRUN 
  
Report of:  Head of Environment & Technical Services 

 
  
Cabinet Portfolio:  Leader and Strategic Direction and Partnerships 
  
Key Decision Yes 
  
Confidentiality Non-Exempt 

 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 To gain approval for Parkrun volunteers to establish a new event at 

Edenbrook Country Park and to seek authorisation for use of the Healthy 
Eating reserve to fund a £1K contribution to the scheme. 

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1 That Hart enter a 12-month agreement with Parkrun UK to enable them to 

establish a trial Parkrun event at Edenbrook Country Park. 
 

2.2 That £1,000 funding be drawn down from the Health Eating and Lifestyles 
reserve to contribute towards the set up. 
 

3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 Parkrun is a charitable company centred around inclusiveness and 

wellbeing. Their free community events are run by local volunteers, for local 
people with the aim of bringing communities together. Local volunteer 
ambassadors have been looking for a suitable place to establish Parkrun 
within the district for some time and are struggling to secure an appropriate 
site. We would like to trial this event at Edenbrook Country Park to provide a 
local event for residents in the district and achieve the associated health and 
wellbeing benefits.  

  
3.2 The route has been carefully planned to take into consideration site wildlife, 

resident housing and other site users, route plan attached at appendix A. The 
route will start at Hart Leisure centre where the car park, toilets and the café 
will be open for public use. The start and finish areas are the main point 
of congregation, so starting the event at the leisure centre will minimise 
disturbance to residents. Parkrun volunteers are also in discussions with 
Calthorpe Park School regarding the use of their car park as an overflow. 

  
3.3 The event takes place from 09.00-10.00 every Saturday morning, with set up 

and pack down times around this. To enable shared access during this short 
time window, the dog walking field has not been included in the planned 
route. Caution runner signs will be erected before the event each Saturday 

Page 77

Agenda Item 10



 

  

and marshals will be manning points along the course for the safety of all 
park users.  

  
3.4 HDC Officers will meet with Parkrun volunteers to monitor and manage risks 

and agree any mitigating actions on a quarterly basis or more regularly 
should the need arise. 

  
3.5 Parkrun has developed a COVID-19 Framework which all Parkrun teams are 

required to read, understand, and agree to. This framework has already been 
used to support the restarting of 100 junior parkrun events in England. 

  
3.6 Parkrun events will restart in England on Saturday 24th July. Parkrun have 

completed a course map for the proposed event at Edenbrook and completed 
an event booking form and sent in the required risk assessment and liability 
cover to the Hart District Council Countryside Service. 

  
4 CONSIDERATIONS 
  
4.1  
 
 

Parkrun will support all three of Hart District Council's health and wellbeing 
priorities which include supporting more people to become active, improving 
mental wellbeing and reducing social isolation.  

  
4.2 The perceived benefits and risks of agreeing to a Park Run at Edenbrook are: 

  
Benefits:  
 
•  Improved health and wellbeing of residents 
•  Low staffing and budget requirement 
•  Supports the 2040 vision 
•  Has the potential to increase income generation should Cabinet in 
 future agree to the operation of a catering concession on the site. 
 
Risks:  
•  Residents submit complaints about the event 
•  Wear and tear to site increases maintenance costs (it is estimated that 
 this will be minimal) 
•  Site user conflict – mitigated by not using dog walking field. 

  
4.3 The route and use of the Edenbrook Country Park site will be kept under 

review and may need to be reconsidered. During winter months it could 
become too wet to run the event and an alternative route or site may need to 
be considered. Therefore, the trial period is being recommended within this 
report. 

  
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
  
5.1 Other sites within Hart District were considered but proximity to the leisure 

centre and its associated facilities: parking, toilets, café were a significant 
benefit. The size of site also meant a 5km route could be accommodated 
more easily. 

  

Page 78



 

  

6 RELEVANCE TO THE CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR THE HART VISION 
2040 

  
6.1 
 
 
 

Approval of the Parkrun trial will support the delivery of the following themes 
within the Hart 2040 Vision: 
 
Theme 2: Specifically continuing to build a great sense of community, 
reducing social isolation 
 
Theme 3: Specifically enhancing our leisure provision e.g., new country parks 
delivering improved facilitates, and through promotion of culture and heritage 
in the districts e.g., through events. Working with existing public sector sports 
facilities providers in the district to create an improved/coordinated health 
offer for our residents. 
 

8 SERVICE PLAN 
 

Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? No 

Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? No 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set 
aside for this proposal?  

Yes 

  

  
6 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
  
6.1 
 

Parkrun will be responsible for all costs associated with implementation of the 
trial, and it estimated that the demand on staff time or any increased 
maintenance costs will be minimal and can be contained within existing 
revenue budgets.    

  
6.2 Volunteers are required to raise £4,000 to ‘Start up’ new Parkrun events. This 

report seeks approval of a contribution of £1,000 towards the total £4,000 
cost of establishing a Parkrun within Hart District from earmarked reserves for 
Healthy Living and Lifestyles. 

  
6.3 Should Parkrun prove successful then the increased visitor numbers to 

Edenbrook could provide opportunities for future income generation. A report 
considering will be brought to a future meeting of Cabinet 

  
7 EQUALITIES  
  
7.1 The Parkrun Project Board report highlights how Parkrun could help to 

address inequalities in physical inactivity for underrepresented groups. No 
potential negative equality impacts have been identified. Should equality 
issues arise during the trial period, these will be reviewed and mitigating 
actions identified at quarterly monitoring meetings. 

  
8 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 
 

The draft contract with Parkrun outlines that the council is committed to 
reducing the use of single use plastics. All effort must be taken to reduce or 
manage plastic waste because of any activity on site and the event 
participants should be encouraged to use reusable water bottles. 

Page 79



 

  

  
8.2 The nearest parkrun events are to the East in Rushmoor and the West in 

Basingstoke. The provision of a local Parkrun event will reduce the need to 
travel out to these areas. 

  
9 ACTION 
  
9.1 Subject to approval the parkrun contract will be signed, and a start date for 

the trial will be agreed.   
 
Officer/e-mail: Katy Sherman, katy.sherman@hart.gov.uk 
 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix A – Park Run Route plan 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

Appendix A

Page 81

H2005770
Pencil

H2005770_1
Pencil

H2005770_2
Arrow

H2005770_3
Arrow

H2005770_4
Arrow

H2005770_5
Arrow

H2005770_6
Arrow

H2005770_7
Arrow

H2005770_8
Arrow

H2005770_9
Arrow

H2005770_10
Arrow

H2005770_11
Arrow

H2005770_12
Arrow

H2005770_13
Arrow

H2005770_14
Arrow

H2005770_15
Arrow

H2005770_16
Arrow

H2005770_17
Arrow

H2005770_18
Arrow

H2005770_22
Arrow

H2005770_23
Arrow

H2005770_24
Arrow

H2005770_25
Arrow

H2005770_26
Arrow

H2005770_27
Arrow

H2005770_28
Arrow

H2005770_29
Typewriter
Edenbrook parkrun

H2005770_30
Textbox
Course:
From the start, follow the green arrows down to the park, turn right and follow the red arrows to the turnaround point, then the black arrows back to the corner.  Do another loop of the red/black arrows and then head back along the purple arrows towards the Finish 

H2005770_31
Callout
START/FINISH



 

CABINET 
 
DATE OF MEETING: 5 August 2021 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/21 
 
 
Cabinet Member:   Councillor James Radley, Deputy Leader and Portfolio 
    Holder for Finance and Assets 
 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To report the Council’s Treasury Management activities during the year ended 

31 March 2021 for consideration by Cabinet. 
 
2. Officer Recommendation 
 
2.1 To note the Treasury Management Outturn statement. 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 

2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2020/21. This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, 
(the Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities, (the Prudential Code).  

 
3.2 During 2020/21 the minimum reporting requirements were that the Council 

should receive the following reports:  

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year  

 a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report  

 an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 
compared to the strategy  

All of these requirements have been met in 2020/21. 

3.3 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review 
and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report provides 
details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance 
with the Council’s policies previously approved by members.   

 
3.4 This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the 

Code to give prior scrutiny to all treasury management reports by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee before they were reported to Cabinet or Council. 
Member training on treasury management issues was undertaken in October 
2020 to support Members in their role. 

 

 

Page 82

Agenda Item 11



 

4.       The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing  
 
4.1      The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These 

activities may either be: 

 Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue 
resources (capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), 
which has no resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply 
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  
The table below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was 
financed. 

 

  2019-20 2020-21 2020-21 

  Actual Budget Actual 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Capital Expenditure                      9,283                       2,802                     1,335  

Financed in year (2,141) (755) (1,851) 

Unfinanced capital 
expenditure  

7,142 2,047 (516) 

 

5.        The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need 
 
5.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed 

the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).   
 
5.2 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are 

prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council 
should ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding 
year (2020/21) plus the estimates of any additional capital financing 
requirement for the current (2021/22) and next two financial years. This 
essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure. This indicator allowed the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2020/21. The table below highlights 
the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR. The Council has 
complied with this prudential indicator. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



 

  2019-20 2020-21 2020-21 

  Actual Budget Actual 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Total CFR 
                   
23,405  

                   
24,936  

                 
22,889  

Gross borrowing 
position 

                   
12,385  

                   
11,055  

                 
11,535  

(Under) / over funding 
of CFR 

(11,020) (13,881) (11,354) 

 
5.3 The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” 

required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the 
Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  The table below 
demonstrates that during 2020/21 the Council has maintained gross borrowing 
within its authorised limit.  

 
5.4 The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected 

borrowing position of the Council during the year. Periods where the actual 
position is either below or over the boundary are acceptable subject to the 
authorised limit not being breached.  

 
5.5 Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator 

identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income), against the net revenue stream. 

 

  2020-21 

  £'000 

Authorised limit                    30,000  

Maximum gross borrowing position during the year                    12,385  

Operational boundary                    25,000  

Average gross borrowing position                    11,960  

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream 4.29% 

  
 
6.       Treasury Position as of 31 March 2021  
 
6.1 At the beginning and the end of 2020/21 the Council‘s treasury (excluding 

borrowing by PFI and finance leases), position was as follows: 
 

  2019-20 2020-21 

  £'000 £'000 

Short-term Borrowing (1,377) (1,383) 

Long-term Borrowing (11,008) (10,152) 

Short-term Investments 11,000 17,000 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 18,760 16,127 

Page 84



 

 
 
 
6.2 The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 
 

  2019-20 2020-21 

  £'000 £'000 

Under 12 months  1,377 1,383 

12 months and within 24 months 1,289 3,702 

24 months and within 5 years 2,530 1,998 

5 years and within 10 years 1,913 2,228 

10 years and within 20 years  4,511 2,224 

20 years and within 30 years  765 0 

 
 
6.3 Investment portfolio: 
 

 (£) Balance  
Interest 

Rate 
Maturity 

(days) 

      

Spelthorne Borough Council  5,000,000 0.04% 182 

Fareham Borough Council 5,000,000 0.18% 365 

Qatar National Bank 2,000,000 0.30% 165 

Lloyds Bank- 32 days’ notice 4,995,858 0.03% 32 

Barclays Ltd - 95 days’ notice 5,000,000 0.30% 95 

Aberdeen Liquidity- Standard Life 4,975,000 0.01% Instant 

Barclays 1,232,488 0.00% Instant 

Santander 4,679,201 0.08% Instant 

      

Total 32,882,547    

        

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

7.        The strategy for 2020/21 
 

7.1        Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 

 

  
Bank 
Rate 

7 day 1 mth 3 mth 6 mth 12 mth 

High 0.10 0.00 0.14 0.56 0.62 0.77 

High 
Date 

01/04/202
0 

02/04/202
0 

20/04/202
0 

08/04/202
0 

14/04/202
0 

21/04/202
0 

Low 0.10 -0.10 -0.11 -0.10 -0.10 -0.05 

Low 
Date 

01/04/202
0 

31/12/202
0 

29/12/202
0 

23/12/202
0 

21/12/202
0 

11/01/202
1 

Averag
e 0.10 -0.07 -0.05 0.01 0.07 0.17 

Spread 0.00 0.10 0.25 0.66 0.73 0.83 

 

7.1.1 Market Investment returns which had already been low during 2019/20, fell 
further during 2020/21 to near zero or even into negative territory.  The 
expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 
2020/21 was that Bank Rate would continue at the start of the year at 0.75 % 
before rising to end 2022/23 at 1.25%.  This forecast was invalidated by the 
Covid-19 pandemic which caused the Monetary Policy Committee to cut Bank 
Rate in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%, in order to counter the hugely 
negative impact of the national lockdown on large swathes of the economy.  
The Bank of England and the Government also introduced new programmes of 
supplying the economy with large amounts of less expensive credit so that 
banks could help businesses to survive the lockdown. The Government also 

Page 86



 

supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on to businesses.  
This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in financial 
markets than there was demand to borrow, with the consequent effect that 
investment earnings rates were lower than predicted. 

7.2  Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 

7.2.1 During 2020-21, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position. This 
meant that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), 
was not fully funded with loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, 
balances and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was 
prudent as investment returns were low and minimising counterparty risk on 
placing investments also needed to be considered. 

7.2.2 The policy of avoiding new borrowing by utilising cash balances has been 
implemented where possible.   

7.2.3 Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium- and longer-term 
fixed borrowing rates during 2020/21 and the two subsequent financial years.  
Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of 
borrowing over the period.   

 

 

Link Group Interest Rate View  8.3.21

Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24

BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

  3 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

  6 month ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

12 month ave earnings 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20

5 yr   PWLB 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40

10 yr PWLB 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 1.90

25 yr PWLB 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

50 yr PWLB 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30

Page 87



 

 

 

 
 
 
7.2.4 There is likely to be only a gentle rise in gilt yields and PWLB rates over the 

next three years as Bank Rate is not forecast to rise from 0.10% by March 
2024 as the Bank of England has clearly stated that it will not raise rates until 
inflation is sustainably above its target of 2%; this sets a high bar for Bank 
Rate to start rising. 

 
 
 
8.       Borrowing Outturn 

 
8.1 Treasury Borrowing – breakdown of borrowing at 31st March 2021: 

Lender Balance (£'000) Type 
Interest 

Rate 
Maturity 

PWLB                      8,625  Fixed Rate 2.19% 23 years 

Hampshire County Council 2,910 Fixed Rate 0.00% 7 years 

 

Page 88



 

8.2  Borrowing – Due to investment concerns, both counterparty risk and low 
investment returns, no borrowing was undertaken during the year. 

 
8.3 Borrowing in advance of need – The Council has not borrowed more than, or 

in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit from the investment of the 
extra sums borrowed. 

 
8.4 Where the Council uses internal borrowing to fund capital projects, Minimum 

Revenue Provision is made using the same requirements as for external 
borrowing. 

 
9.      Investment Outturn 

9.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG 
investment guidance, which has been implemented in the annual investment 
strategy approved by the Council on 21st January 2020. This policy sets out 
the approach for choosing investment counterparties and is based on credit 
ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by 
additional market data, (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank 
share prices etc.).   

 
9.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, 

and the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

9.3 Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital 
resources and cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources 
comprised as follows: 

 

Balance Sheet Resources 2019-20 2020-21 

Balances £'000 £'000 

Earmarked Reserves (16,176) (25,689) 

Provisions (302) (527) 

Usable Capital Receipts (595) (382) 

Total (17,073) (26,598) 

 

 
9.4 Investments held by the Council – at the end of the financial year the Council 

held the funds detailed in 6.3 which were managed internally. The total 
investment income for 2020/21 was £157k compared to a budget of £200k. 

 
10.      Other Issues 

10.1 Counter Party Limits. The council extended the counterparty limits for Barclays 
bank accounts on four occasions during year, reaching the highest of £25mil in 
January 2021.This was done by activating emergency treasury management 
measures due to receiving significant grants from central government relating 
to Covid-19.   

Page 89



 

 
11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 This report provides Members with information on the level of investment and 

interest earned during the last financial year and demonstrates the council’s 
compliance with the Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

Contact Details: Emma Foy, Head of Corporate Services and S.151 Officer 
Telephone:  01252 774207 
Email:  Emma.Foy@hart.gov.uk  
  
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
Treasury Management Strategy Statement (Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 21 
January 2020) 
 

Page 90



APPENDIX 

 

Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
 
During 2020/21, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  
The key actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital 
expenditure activities during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 
 

    2019-20 2020-21 2020-21   

  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS Actual Original Actual   

    £'000 £'000 £'000   

  Capital Expenditure 9,283 2,802 1,335   

  Gross Debt 12,385 11,055 11,535   
  Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)      

  Brought Forward 1 April 16,263 23,405 23,405   

  Carried Forward 31 March 23,405 24,936 22,889   

  Change in CFR 7,142 1,531 (516)   

  Incremental impact of capital investment    

    decisions  £ p £ p £ p 

  Increase in council tax (band D) per annum (3.68) (15.73) (15.97)   

 
 

    2019-20 2020-21 2020-21   
  TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS Actual Original Actual   

    £'000 £'000 £'000   

  Authorised Limit for External Debt      

  Borrowing 30,000 30,000 30,000   

  Operational Boundary for External Debt      

  Borrowing 25,000 25,000 25,000   

  Actual External Debt 12,385 11,055 11,535   

 
 

  
Maturity structure of fixed and variable 
interest rate borrowing 2020-21 

Lower 
% 

Upper 
% 

  

  Under 12 months 0 50   

  12 months to 2 years 0 50   

  2 years to 5 years 0 50   

  5 years to 10 years 0 50   

  10 years to 20 years 0 50   

  20 years to 30 years 0 50   

  30 years to 40 years 0 50   

  40 years to 50 years 0 50   

 

 

 

Page 91



APPENDIX 

 

A) PWLB borrowing rates 
 

 

 
 
 

B) Money market investment rates and forecasts 2020/21 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



APPENDIX 

 

C) UK, US and EZ GDP growth  
 

 

 

D) Inflation UK, US, Germany and France 

 

Page 93



 

 

CABINET  
 

KEY DECISIONS/ WORK PROGRAMME, AND EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE 
 
August 2021 
 
Cabinet is required to publish its Key Decisions and forward work programme to inform the public of issues on which it intends to make policy or 
decisions.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also notes the Programme, which is subject to regular revision.   
 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This 
item 
may 

contain 
Exempt 
Inform-
ation 

Welcome Back Fund Jul 21 Update from the Working Group on 
the Council’s bid for an 
ecommerce platform  

Aug 21   DN ALL  

Customer Care Policy Aug 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny to consider the updated 
Customer Care Standards and 
Unreasonable Customer 
Behaviour Policy 

Aug 21   DN JCX  

Community Trigger Policy Jun 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny to update Cabinet on the 
Community Trigger Policy & 
Procedure for adoption 

Aug 21   SB CSF  

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 12



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This 
item 
may 

contain 
Exempt 
Inform-
ation 

Revised Safeguarding Policy 
& Procedure 

Apr 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny to consider adoption of 
the Safeguarding Policy and newly 
drafted Modern Slavery 
Transparency Statement 

Aug 21   JR CSF  

Park Run Concession Aug 21 To agree the use of Edenbrook 
Country Park for Park Run and to 
offer hospitality concession 
associated with the Park Run 

Aug 21   DN TS  

Treasury Management 
2020/2021 (Annual Report) 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider 
the Annual report on Treasury 
Management 2020/21 

Aug 21   JR F  

Website Redesign Project Sep 21 To request authority to draw down 
from Digital Strategy earmarked 
reserves to fund the procurement 
of the new website project 

Sep 21   TC CS  

Food and Health and Safety 
Service Plan 

Annual Recommend to Council that the 
annual Food Safety Plan be 
adopted 

Sep 21   SK P  

P
age 95



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This 
item 
may 

contain 
Exempt 
Inform-
ation 

Quarterly Budget Monitoring - 
Outturn 

Quarterly Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
report on Quarterly Budget 
Monitoring 

Sep 21 

Dec 21 

Mar 22 

  JR F  

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny To give an early 
consideration of the emerging 
budget for 2021/22 and the MTFS 

Aug 21 Sep 21  JR F  

Homelessness Strategy Nov 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
new Homelessness Strategy 2022-
2027 

Nov 21 Dec 21  SB CSF  

Treasury Management 
2021/22 

(Half Year Report) 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
Half Year review report on 
Treasury Management Strategy 
2020/21 

Dec 21   JR F  

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Annual To give an early consideration of 
the emerging budget for 2021/22 
and the MTFS 

Dec 21   JR F 
 

P
age 96



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This 
item 
may 

contain 
Exempt 
Inform-
ation 

Draft 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget, Capital Programme 
and Council Tax Proposals 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to agree to 
recommend to Council the 2021/22 
Revenue Budget, Capital 
Programme and Council Tax 
Proposals 

Feb 22   JR F 
 

Draft 2021/22 Capital 
Strategy, Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement and Asset 
Management Plan 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to agree to 
recommend to Council the 2021/22 
draft Capital Strategy, the 2021/22 
Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Asset Management 
Plan 

Feb 22   JR F 
 

Service Plans Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, agree the 
2021/22 Service Plans 

Apr 22   DN ALL 
 

Outside Bodies Annual To approve representation from 
the Council on identified outside 
bodies 

Jun 22   DN JCX 
 

Revenue and Capital Outturn 
2021/2022 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider 
the Annual report on outturn 

Jul 22   JR F 
 

P
age 97



 

 

 
Note 1 
A “key decision” means an executive decision which, is likely to -  

a) result in Council incurring expenditure or the making of savings which amount to £30,000 or 25% (whichever is the larger) of the budget 
for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the area of the 
district of Hart. 

 
Note 2 

 Cabinet Members   
 DN  Leader   TC Digital  RQ  Commercialisation (Cn)  SB Community (Cy) 
 SK Regulatory   AO Environment  JR Finance and Corporate 

Services 
 GC Place 

 
Note 3 

 Service:      
 JCX Joint Chief 

Executive 
CS Corporate Services P Place Services 

 CSF Community Safety PP Planning Policy TS Environmental & Technical Services  
 F Finance H Community Services   
 SLS Shared Legal 

Services 
MO Monitoring Officer   

 
Note 4 
* This item may contain Exempt Information - Regulation 5 of the Local Authority (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  
 

26/07/21 Cllr Neighbour To release S106 funding towards implementing Blackwater and Hawley Town Councils 
Leisure Strategy 

 

    

    

 
 

P
age 98


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 MINUTES FROM THE CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP
	7 HART DISTRICT COUNCIL CUSTOMER CARE POLICIES
	21 08 05 APP A Customer care standards FINAL draft
	21 08 05 APP B Policy on unreasonable customer behaviour 2021

	8 COMMUNITY TRIGGER POLICY
	21 08 05 APP A Community Trigger Policy and Procedure

	9 REVISED SAFEGUARDING POLICY & PROCEDURE AND MODERN SLAVERY TRANSPARENCY STATEMENT
	21 08 05 APP A Safeguarding Policy and Procedure FINAL
	21 08 05 APP B HDC Modern Day Slavery Transparency Statement

	10 PARKRUN
	21 08 05 APP A Park Run Site plan - Course A

	11 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/2021
	12 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME

